
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Thursday, 8 August 2024 

 

Tel: 01993 861000 

e-mail: democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB on Monday, 

19 August 2024 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 
To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Lidia Arciszewska, Andrew Beaney, Adam Clements, Roger 

Faulkner, David Jackson, Rosie Pearson, Elizabeth Poskitt, Geoff Saul and Mark 

Walker 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

To receive any apologies for absence from members of Sub-Committee. 

The quorum for the Sub-Committee is 3 members. 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations of interest from members of the Sub-Committee on any 

items to be considered at the meeting. 

 

3.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Monday 17 June 2024.  

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 9 - 50) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 
 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 

Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

Pages  Application No. Address Planning Officer 

11-29 24/01272/OUT Land (E) 426217 (N) 218672 

Church Road 

Milton Under Wychwood 

Stephanie Eldridge  

30-41 24/01566/FUL Land Adjacent To 

10 Coombes Close 

Shipton Under Wychwood 

Sarah Hegerty  

42-45 24/01618/HHD The Lodge  

Pytts Lane 

Burford 

Nathan Harris  

46-49 24/01619/LBC The Lodge  

Pytts Lane 

Burford 

Nathan Harris 

 

 

4.1   24/01272/OUT Land (E) 426217 (N) 218672, Church Road,  Milton Under 

Wychwood. 

 

 

4.2   24/01566/FUL Land Adjacent To 10 Coombes Close, Shipton Under 

Wychwood. 

 

 

4.3   24/01618/HHD The Lodge, Pytts Lane, Burford. 

 

 

4.4   24/01619/LBC The Lodge, Pytts Lane, Burford. 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 2



 

 

5.   Amendments to Section 106 agreement of application ref. 22/02429/FUL- Play Area, 

Walterbush Road, Chipping Norton. (Pages 51 - 54) 

Purpose: 

To enable members to consider whether to proceed with proposed amendments to the 

Section 106 Agreement associated with application ref. 22/02429/FUL. 

 

Recommendation: 

That the sub-committee resolves to grant planning permission subject to the amended 

Section 106 agreement. 

 

6.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers (Pages 55 - 86) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers. 

 

Recommendation: 

That the report be noted by the Sub-Committee. 

 

7.   Appeal Decisions (Pages 87 - 88) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of any appeal decisions. 

 

Recommendation: 

That the report be noted by the Sub-Committee. 

 

8.   Progress on Enforcement Cases (Pages 89 - 96) 

Purpose: 

To provide an update on progress in respect of priority enforcement investigations. 

 

Recommendation: 
That the progress and nature of the outstanding enforcement investigations detailed in 

Sections A – C of Annex A be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of a meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee. 

Held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB 

at 2.00pm on Monday 17 June 2024. 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Mark Walker (Vice-Chair), Lidia Arciszewska, Hugo 

Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Adam Clements, Genny Early, Roger Faulkner, David Jackson and 

Geoff Saul. 

Officers: Andrew Brown (Business Manager, Democratic Services), Max Thompson (Senior 

Democratic Services Officer), Abby Fettes (Development Manager) and Sarah Hegerty 

(Planning Officer). 

Other Councillors in attendance:  Nil. 

26 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Apologies for Absence were received from Councillor Rosie Pearson. 

Councillor Genny Early substituted for Councillor Rosie Pearson. 

27 Declarations of Interest  

Councillor Julian Cooper stated they had previously met the applicant in relation to application 

23/00147/FUL (Furze Platts, Blenheim Park, Woodstock) when they were not a member of 

the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee, and that previous discussions did not preclude 

them for being present when considering the application. 

There were no other declarations of interest made by members of the Sub-Committee. 

28 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

Councillor Julian Cooper advised of a clerical error contained within the minutes of the 

previous meeting relating to declarations of interest made at the meeting from themselves and 

Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt, whereby they knew of the applicant’s agent (Mr. Huw Mellor) in 
relation to application 24/00686/FUL, and that it did not preclude them from participating in 

the consideration of the application. 

This was subsequently amended by Democratic Services. 

Councillor Julian Cooper proposed that the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Tuesday 

28 May 2024, be agreed by the Sub-Committee as a true and accurate record. 

This was seconded by Councillor Roger Faulkner, was put to a vote, and was unanimously 

agreed by the Sub-Committee. 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Agree the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Tuesday 28 May 2024, as a true 

and accurate record. 

Max Thompson, Senior Democratic Services Officer, advised the Sub-Committee of the 

outcome of an action arising from the previous meeting. The Senior Democratic Services 

Officer advised they had received a written response from Mr. Jeff Haine, a previous member 

of the Council, in relation to the Sub-Committee placing on the record their thanks to former 

Councillor Jeff Haine, for the work they did whilst serving on the Uplands Area Planning Sub-

Committee. 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

17/June2024 

 

 Applications for Development  

30 23/00147/FUL Furze Platts, Blenheim Park, Woodstock  

Sarah Hegerty, Planning Officer, introduced the application, for the erection of a replacement 

estate House, together with the conversion of existing barn and outbuildings for ancillary use, 

works to include new access drive through to existing courtyard, an outdoor pool and 

associated landscaping works. 

Martin Leay and Francis Terry addressed the Sub-Committee as agents for the application. 

The Planning Officer continued with their presentation, which clarified the following points: 

 Local Plan Policies H2 and H6 – The Planning Officer stated that the policies were not 

applicable to the application as the proposed dwelling was not of relative scale to the 

existing site dwelling, and the proposed dwelling was a replacement dwelling not 

intended for the open market; 

 Location of the proposed dwelling – The Planning officer stated that the location was 

used for agriculture historically, and there was an existing farmhouse and buildings on 

site.  

 Security – The proposed dwelling was contained in a site within the Blenheim Estate 

and had linked implications for the intended resident and their family. The displaced 

residential use was relocating to a site which historically had a residential presence 

within the Blenheim Estate;  

 The application would ensure that a barn and cow barn would remain, so that a 

historic agricultural element would be retained within the site therefore providing a 

heritage benefit; 

 The benefits of the scheme were considered to outweigh the policy conflict. 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points: 

 The location of the proposed dwelling – The Sub-Committee highlighted the 

importance of the location of the proposed dwelling contained within the Blenheim 

Estate and that the dwelling would be in keeping with existing design and usage; 

 Utilisation of the dwelling within the Estate – The Planning Officer confirmed there 

were no restrictions regarding lengths of time that the dwelling would be occupied 

throughout the year or if the Duke was not in residence;  

 Vehicular and Pedestrian Access – The Planning Officer confirmed that vehicular access 

would remain through Ditchley Gate, located to the north of the site, and that 

pedestrian access would be maintained owing to a public footpath contained adjacent 

to the site of the proposed dwelling; 

 Use of Solar Panels – Officers confirmed that the proposed dwelling would be inclusive 

of solar panels and would be permissible in conjunction with Policy OS3; 

 The high-quality report produced by Officers – The Chair of the Sub-Committee 

praised the work of Officers for bringing a sound report to the Sub-Committee for 

their consideration; 

Page 6



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

17/June2024 

 Adherence to Condition 10 of the application – Officers confirmed that Condition 10 

would apply to the whole site. 

Councillor Julian Cooper proposed that the application be approved, in line with officer 

recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor David Jackson, was put to a vote, and was 

unanimously agreed by the Sub-Committee. 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Approve the application, in line with officer recommendations. 

31 23/03421/FUL Collicutt, Wilcote Riding, Finstock, Chipping Norton  

The application was not considered by the Sub-Committee, owing to withdrawal by the 

applicant ahead of the meeting. 

32 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers was received, 

explained by Planning Officers, and noted by the Sub-Committee. 

The Sub-Committee thanked Officers for their continuing work in light of an increase of 

applications being submitted for consideration. 

33 Appeal Decisions Report  

There were no appeal decisions for the Sub-Committee to note at the meeting. 

 

The meeting closed at 3.24pm. 

 

CHAIR 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 19th August 2024 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Business Manager. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item Application Number Address Officer 

 

1 

 

24/01272/OUT Land (E) 426217 (N) 218672 

Church Road. MUW  

 

Stephanie 

Eldridge 

 

2 

 

24/01566/FUL Land Adjacent To 10 Coombes 

Close, SUW  

 

Sarah Hegerty 

 

3 

 

24/01618/HHD The Lodge  Pytts Lane 

 

Nathan Harris 

 

4 24/01619/LBC The Lodge  Pytts Lane 

 

Nathan Harris 

 

 

 

   

  

Page 10



Application Number 24/01272/OUT 

Site Address Land (E) 426217 (N) 218672 

Church Road 

Milton Under Wychwood 

Oxfordshire 

Date 7th August 2024 

Officer Stephanie Eldridge 

Officer Recommendations Refuse 

Parish Milton Under Wychwood Parish Council 

Grid Reference 426640 E       218501 N 

Committee Date 19th August 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

 

Outline application for erection of 16 no. dwelling houses (8 no. affordable and 8 no. self-build dwellings) 

with associated works including access, provision of landscaping, public open space and new footpath 

links. 

 

 

Page 11



Applicant Details: 

 

C/O Agent 

 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council The PC strongly object to this outline planning application under the 

following reasons:- 

 

When 20/00070/FUL for 5 houses was approved, WODC assured 

the PC that that was the limit of houses which would be permitted 

on that land.  

 

Application Number 23/02745/FUL for 8 dwellings was objected by 

the PC and subsequently refused by WODC on 11.12.2023. 

WODC refusal reasons 1,2 and 4 actually apply to this latest 

application.  

 

The proposed development would severely over dominate the 

existing bungalows in Church Road and create a risk of flooding to 

them. The sewage treatments in Shipton-under-Wychwood are one 

of the worst performing in the District, with regular overflows of 

raw sewage into the Evenlode river every time there is a heavy 

downpour of rain. The PC insist that there should be no further 

development permitted until improvement works have satisfactorily 

been carried out at Shipton-under-Wychwood. 

 

Milton-under-Wychwood lies within the Cotswolds National 

Landscape and paragraphs 176 and 177 of the NPPF state that great 

weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and 

scenic beauty and it should have the highest status of protection and 

development should be limited. Permission should be refused for 

major development, considered to be 10 units or more, other than 

in exceptional circumstances and where it can be demonstrated that 

that the development is in the public interest. Clearly it has been 

shown by the number of objections from members of the public 

that there is not a need for this development and that there will be 

a considerable detrimental effect on the landscape and the 

environment. 

 

The Milton-under-Wychwood Neighbourhood Plan was made on 

26th June 2023 and its policies should be applied to all planning 

applications, one of which covers the effect of further development.  

 

Policy CH1 covers the village character and environmentally 

sensitive design and states that all development proposals should 

conserve and enhance local character. Policy CH2 covers key views 

and states that these should be protected and enhanced. Policy E1 

Page 12



covers green corridors and states that these should be conserved 

and enhanced for biodiversity and wildlife movement. 

 

The current application does not accord to paragraphs 176 and 177 

of the NPPF and Local Plan policies OS2, OS4, EH1, EH2, EH7 and 

BC1 and Milton-under-Wychwood Neighbourhood Plan Policies 

CH1, CH2 and E1. 

 

The affordable housing element is not clear on the planning 

application. 

 

The local traffic impact has not been addressed in detail. The traffic 

congestion at the school and the co-op is already unacceptable at 

peak times. 

 

The rail transport is referred to but not recognised that local rail 

service is very infrequent and restricted service ' 5 trains a day ' 2 

southbound and 3 northbound. 

 

Buses are referred to but no mention of reduced frequency and 

restricted routes. 

 

Local power and water outages are on the increase, this 

development will increase the frequency. There is no mention of 

assessment in the planning application. 

 

The land has not been assessed for contamination, any 

removal/disturbance would be risk to local water course and 

streams and rivers.  
 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

Transport:  

 

Objection. The development has failed to demonstrate safe and 

suitable access for all users contrary to policy T2 of the Local Plan 

2031 and paragraphs 114 and 116 of the NPPF. 

 

The street hierarchy in combination with the Highfields 

development creates an environment that is not legible for road 

users leading to potential for conflicts. 

 

Access through Highfields and particularly the junction with Church 

Road has not been demonstrated to be safe and suitable for all 

users. 

 

Lead Local Flood Authority:  

 

SuDS are included in the FRA and appear to meet the LLFA's 

requirements.  

 

Archaeology:  

Page 13



 

Milton under Wychwood has seen relatively little archaeological 

investigation carried out, however, a scheme of evaluation on the 

southwestern edge of the village recorded a ditch with Late Iron 

Age/early Roman pottery, as well as an undated ditch and posthole. 

An archaeological excavation 670m to the southeast of the site, 

south of Milton Road, recorded Neolithic pits, an Iron Age 

settlement which increased in status over time, and Anglo Saxon 

sunken featured 

buildings. A map from 1797 and LiDAR data show that the 

development area has not seen any obvious disturbances, and so it 

is possible that further prehistoric remains survive. 

 

We would, therefore, recommend that, should planning permission 

be granted, the applicant should be responsible for ensuring the 

implementation of a staged programme of archaeological 

investigation to be maintained during the period of construction. 

This can be ensured through the attachment of a suitable negative 

condition.  

 

Waste Management:  

 

No objection, subject to S106 contribution (£1630).  

 

Education:  

 

No objection, subject to S106 contributions towards Secondary 

School provision (£103,968).  
 

Thames Water Waste Comments: 

 

Following initial investigations, Thames Water has identified an 

inability of the existing FOUL WATER network infrastructure to 

accommodate the needs of this development proposal. Thames 

Water has contacted the developer in an attempt to agree a position 

for foul water networks but has been unable to do so in the time 

available and as such Thames Water request that the following 

condition be added to any planning permission: 

 

"The development shall not be occupied until confirmation has 

been provided that either:- 1. All foul water network upgrades 

required to accommodate the additional flows from the 

development have been completed; or- 2. A development and 

infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with the Local Authority 

in consultation with Thames Water to allow development to be 

occupied. Where a development and infrastructure phasing plan is 

agreed, no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with 

the agreed development and infrastructure phasing plan." REASON: 

Network reinforcement works are likely to be required to 

accommodate the proposed development. Any reinforcement works 

Page 14



identified will be necessary in order to avoid sewage flooding and/or 

potential pollution incidents. The developer can request information 

to support the discharge of this condition by visiting the Thames 

Water website at thameswater.co.uk/preplanning. Should the Local 

Planning Authority consider the above recommendation 

inappropriate or are unable to include it in the decision notice, it is 

important that the Local Planning Authority liaises with Thames 

Water Development Planning Department (e-mail: 

devcon.team@thameswater.co.uk) prior to the planning application 

approval. 

 

Following initial investigations, Thames Water has identified an 

inability of the existing SEWAGE TREATMENT WORKS 

infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this development 

proposal. 

 

MILTON-UNDER-WYCHWOOD STW is currently being upgraded 

to accommodate this and other development in the catchment. The 

upgrade works are due to be completed by April 2025 and as such 

Thames Water feel it would be prudent for the following condition 

to be attached to any planning approval: 

 

The development here by approved shall not be occupied until 

either:- 1. The sewage treatment works upgrades, at MILTON-

UNDER-WYCHWOOD STW, to accommodate the additional 

flows from the development have been completed; or- 2. A 

development and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with 

the Local Authority in consultation with Thames Water to allow 

development to be occupied. Where a development and 

infrastructure phasing plan is agreed, no occupation shall take place 

other than in accordance with the agreed development and 

infrastructure phasing plan." 

 

The developer can request information to support the discharge of 

this condition by visiting the Thames Water website at Development 

Planning Department (telephone 0203 577 9998) prior to the 

planning application approval. Should the Local Planning Authority 

consider the above recommendation inappropriate or are unable to 

include it in the decision notice, it is important that the Local 

Planning Authority liaises with Thames Water Development Planning 

Department (e-mail: devcon.team@thameswater.co.uk) prior to the 

planning application approval. 

 

The application indicates that SURFACE WATER will NOT be 

discharged to the public network and as such Thames Water has no 

objection, however approval should be sought from the Lead Local 

Flood Authority. Should the applicant subsequently seek a 

connection to discharge surface water into the public network in the 

future then we would consider this to be a material change to the 

Page 15



proposal, which would require an amendment to the application at 

which point we would need to review our position. 

 

We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures will 

be undertaken to minimise groundwater discharges into the public 

sewer. Groundwater discharges typically result from construction 

site dewatering, deep excavations, basement infiltration, borehole 

installation, testing and site remediation. Any discharge made 

without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution 

under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. Should the 

Local Planning 

Authority be minded to approve the planning application, Thames 

Water would like an informative attached to the planning 

permission. 

 

Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be 

fitted in all car parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the 

effective use of petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted 

discharges entering local watercourses. 

 

Water Comments: 

 

If you are planning on using mains water for construction purposes, 

it's important you let Thames Water know before you start using it, 

to avoid potential fines for improper usage. More information and 

how to apply can be found online at thameswater.co.uk/building 

water. 

On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise 

that with regard to water network and water treatment 

infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the 

above planning 

application. Thames Water recommends an informative be attached 

to this planning permission.  
 

District Ecologist No Comment Received.  
 

Env Health Contamination Review of the historical maps we hold suggest the land has been 

used for agriculture over time. There appears to have been some 

structures present on the site and a potential stockpile of material. 

Given the proposed residential use please consider adding the 

standard condition to any grant of permission.  
 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

No Comment Received.  

 

Cotswolds Conservation 

Board 

Having reviewed the application, the Board objects to this 

application. For the reasons outlined within Annex 1 below we 

consider that the proposal would not conserve and enhance the 

natural beauty of the 

Page 16



National Landscape and accordingly the proposal as submitted does 

not accord with policies OS2, EH1 and BC1 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, policies CH1 and CH2 of the Milton-

under-Wychwood Neighbourhood Plan and Policies CE1 and CE10 

of the Cotswolds National Landscape Management Plan 2023-2025. 

We consider that the proposal would not be in keeping with the 

prevailing settlement form and would comprise backland 

development extending into open countryside which would give rise 

to significant adverse visual effects, both at year 1 and year 15, from 

multiple viewpoints within the CNL.  
 

Climate No Comment Received.  
 

WODC Planning Policy 

Manager 

No Comment Received.  

 

Natural England NO OBJECTION.  

 

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the 

proposed development will not have significant adverse impacts on 

statutorily protected nature conservation sites.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 44 letters of objection have been received. These are available to view in full on the Council's 

website. The key points raised relate to:  

 

• Lack of infrastructure to support more houses in the village;  

• More houses will add to existing sewage problems;  

• Local traffic is already an issue in the village;  

• Existing houses in the village lose power and water pressure already;  

• Loss of biodiversity;  

• Overdevelopment of the area;  

• Negative impact on the village green;  

• Landscape impact;  

• Flood risk  

• Contrary to the neighbourhood plan.  

 

2.2 25 letters of support have been received and they are summarised as follows: 

 

• The village desperately needs affordable housing;  

• The application has addressed the sewage issues and Thames Water have agreed it can be 

dealt with via condition;  

• New open space for the village is a positive;  

• New public link between Church Lane and Green Lane; 

•  The land is in private use so this would open it up to community.  

 

 

 

Page 17



3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The Planning Statement is concluded as follows: 

 

It is concluded that any adverse impacts of the proposal would not significantly and 

demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken 

as a whole. The proposal therefore benefits from the presumption in favour of sustainable 

development. The benefits of the proposed development and presumption in favour of 

sustainable development in the context of the tilted balance lead to the conclusion that the 

application should be approved, not in accordance with the development plan, as material 

considerations indicate a decision otherwise is appropriate. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

OS5NEW Supporting infrastructure 

H1NEW Amount and distribution of housing 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H3NEW Affordable Housing 

H4NEW Type and mix of new homes 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH6 Decentralised and renewable or low carbo 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

BC1NEW Burford-Charlbury sub-area 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2023 

MILTNP Milton Under Wychwood Neighbourhood Plan 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 The application seeks outline consent for the erection of 16 no. dwelling houses (8 no. affordable 

and 8 no. self-build dwellings) with associated works including access, provision of landscaping, public 

open space and new footpath links at land east of Church Road, Milton under Wychwood. All other 

matters are reserved.  

 

5.2 The site lies within the Cotswolds National Landscape ('CNL') and for a large part in Flood Risk 

Zone 1, with a small encroachment into Flood Zone 2 in the north west corner of the site.   

 

5.3 The site is bounded to the west by residential development along Church Road, the northern and 

eastern site boundaries are shared with undeveloped, open fields/land. The southern boundary is 

shared predominantly with the village's recreation ground. 'Spring Cottage', which lies adjacent to the 

north eastern corner of the site reads as an outlier, separate from the built up area, further adding 

Page 18



weight to your officer's conclusion that the site should be considered to adjoin (rather than sit 

within) the built up area of the village.  

 

5.4 The site falls within the Milton under Wychwood Neighbourhood Plan area.  

 

5.5 Five dwellings along with associated access and landscaping works were approved under reference 

20/00070/FUL (and varied by 23/01543/S73) at High Fields along Church Road directly west of this 

application site. The approved development is in the process of being built out.  

 

5.6 Planning application 23/02745/FUL for the erection of 8 new dwellings on the site the subject of this 

application was refused for the following reasons:  

 

1. The proposed windfall residential development would be sited on land that comprises principally 

undeveloped land which adjoins the built up area of Milton-under-Wychwood. No evidence has been provided 

to demonstrate that the development is necessary to meet a specific local housing need as required by West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan Policy H2. The proposal is therefore in conflict with the housing locational strategy as 

set out in West Oxfordshire Local Plan Policies OS2, H1, H2 and BC1. 

 

2. The site lies within the Cotswolds National Landscape wherein the Local Planning Authority is required to 

give great weight to conserving landscape and scenic beauty. The site is prominently located in the countryside 

beyond the existing settlement edge of Milton-under-Wychwood. The development would encroach 

unacceptably into agricultural land and would fail to relate satisfactorily to the village or the existing rural and 

open setting. It would result in the loss of an important area of open space that makes a positive contribution 

to the character of the area and would be prominent and visible in a number of public views within the 

locality. The proposed development would therefore fail to respect the character and appearance of the area 

nor conserve or enhance landscape and scenic beauty in the CNL. As such, the proposed development would 

conflict with Policies OS2, OS4, EH1 and BC1 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, Milton-

under-Wychwood Neighbourhood Plan Policies CH1 and CH2, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016, and 

the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF. 

 

3. The applicant has not entered into an agreement with the Local Planning Authority to make a financial 

contribution towards off-site affordable housing as required by West Oxfordshire Local Plan Policy H3. 

 

4. Insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate that the proposal will adequately manage 

groundwater and surface water during the construction phase and post construction to minimise flood risk to 

third parties, specifically the occupiers of 'Spring Cottage', as required by West Oxfordshire Local Plan Policy 

EH7 and advice in the NPPF.  

 

5.7 The application is before Members of the sub-committee for consideration due to the contentious 

nature of the proposals within the community. Taking into account planning policy, other material 

considerations and the representations of interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the 

key considerations of the application are: 

 

• Principle of Development  

• Housing Mix 

• Siting, impact on the setting of the village and the Cotswold National Landscape 

• Highway Impact and Pedestrian Accessibility 

• Residential Amenity 

• Flood Risk 

• Biodiversity 

Page 19



• Archaeology 

• Other infrastructure  

 

 

Principle of development 

 

National Policy/Guidance 

 

5.8 The National Planning Policy Framework ("the NPPF") sets out the Government's planning policies 

and how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF advises that the purpose of the planning system 

is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development and sets out that there are three 

dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and environmental. In essence, the 

economic role should contribute to building a strong, responsive, and competitive economy; the 

social role should support strong, vibrant and healthy communities; and the environmental role 

should contribute to protecting and enhancing the natural, built and historic environment. These 

roles should not be undertaken in isolation, because they are mutually dependant. 

 

5.9 At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development and paragraph 11 

advises that for decision-making this means approving development proposals that accord with an up-

to-date development plan without delay, or where policies that are most important for determining 

the application are out-of-date, permission should be granted unless: 

 

I. the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 

II. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole. 

 

The Council's housing land supply position and the implications of the NPPF 

 

5.10 Following a recent appeal decision (PINs ref: APP/D3125/W/23/3332089), the LPA accepts that it is 

at present unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of housing land. As part of this appeal the 

Inspector concludes there to be a supply of 2,473 homes (4.34 years supply). 

 

5.11 The 'tilted balance' as directed by paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF would therefore be engaged. This 

does not undermine the pre-eminence of the local development plan in decision-making and 

assessment against relevant policies in the WOLP may therefore be weighted in the planning balance. 

 

Development Plan 

 

5.12 The starting point in the assessment of the principle of development is WOLP Policy OS2 which 

sets out the general spatial strategy in the District and identifies a hierarchy of settlements for new 

development, which seeks to steer a significant proportion of future development in  the 'main 

service centres' of Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton. It takes a hierarchical approach as set 

out in table 4b, which characterises Milton under Wychwood as a village.  

 

5.13 OS2 goes on to state: 'The villages are suitable for limited development which respects the village 

character and local distinctiveness and would help to maintain the vitality of these communities... 

Proposals for residential development will be considered in accordance with Policy H2 of this Local 

Plan'. 

 

Page 20



5.14 Policy H2 outlines that new dwellings will be permitted on undeveloped land adjoining the built up 

area where convincing evidence is presented to demonstrate that it is necessary to meet identified 

housing needs, it is in accordance with the distribution of housing set out in Policy H1 and is in 

accordance with other policies in the plan in particular the general principles in Policy OS2.  

 

5.15 Sub-area policy BC1 states that Burford and Charlbury are relatively constrained by their AONB 

location and are suitable for a modest level of development in accordance with Policy OS2. 

Development in these rural service centres will therefore be of an appropriate scale and type that 

would help to reinforce the existing service centre role. Development elsewhere, such as in Milton 

under Wychwood, will be limited to meeting local housing, community and business needs and will 

be steered towards the larger villages. 

 

5.16 As the site falls within the Cotswold National Landscape, the LPA must also have regard to 

paragraph 183 of the NPPF which states:  

 

'When considering applications for development within Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (now known as 

the CNL), permission should be refused for major development other than in exceptional circumstances, and 

where it can be demonstrated that the development is in the public interest. Consideration of such 

applications should include an assessment of:  

 

a) the need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, and the impact of 

permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy; 

b)  the cost of, and scope for, developing outside the designated area, or meeting the need for it in some 

other way; and 

c)  any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational opportunities, and the extent 

to which that could be moderated.' 

 

5.17 This is also reflected in Policy EH1 which states that major development will not be permitted 

within the AONB other than in exceptional circumstances, as required by national policy and 

guidance. 

 

5.18 In light of this, whether the principle of development is acceptable will depend on the below 

assessment, and any identified harms associated with the proposals being balanced against the wider 

planning benefits of the scheme in the conclusion of this report in accordance with paragraphs 11(d) 

and 183 of the NPPF.  

 

Housing Mix 

 

5.19 Policy H3 of the WOLP sets out that across the District as a whole, housing schemes of 11 or 

more units or which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of more than 1,000m2 will be 

required to provide affordable housing on-site as a proportion of the market homes proposed as 

follows: 

 

• High value zone (50%) 

• Medium value zone (40%) 

• Low value zone (35%) 

 

5.20 The proposed development proposes 8 affordable dwellings so meets this requirement.  

 

Page 21



5.21 Policy H5 of the Local Plan states that proposals for custom and self-build housing will be approved 

in suitable, sustainable locations subject to compliance with other relevant policies of this plan 

including Policies OS2, H2 and E3.  

 

5.22 Following appeal decision (PINs ref: 3274197), the LPA accepts that is unable to demonstrate that it 

has met its statutory duty with regard to provision of custom and self-build plots. The Self-build and 

Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 introduced a duty on local authorities to keep a register of 

individuals, and associations of individuals, who wished to acquire serviced plots of land to bring 

forward for self-build/custom build projects. Councils are required to have regard to those registers 

when carrying out planning functions. The Housing and Planning Act 2016 provided a duty that 

Councils must give 'suitable' planning permissions to meet the demand for SBCH. The Planning 

Practice Guidance ("the PPG") states registers are likely to be material considerations in decisions 

involving proposals for application involving self-build/custom build housing.  

 

5.23 The provision of 8 self-build dwellings would make a modest contribution towards the identified 

shortfall.  

 

5.24 Policy H4 requires all residential developments to provide or contribute towards the provision of a 

good, balanced mix of property types and sizes. In this case, a mix of 2, 3, 4 and 5 bed properties 

would be provided - two 4 bed and one 5 bed, the majority of the development focuses on 2 and 3 

bed dwellings. Your officers consider that this is an appropriate mix.   

 

Siting, impact on the setting of the village and the Cotswold National Landscape 

 

5.25 Policy OS2 requires development to form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of 

development and/or character of the area and as far as is reasonably possible, protect or enhance the 

local landscape and setting of settlements. It goes on to state that development should not involve 

the loss of an area of open space that makes an important contribution to the character or 

appearance of the area.  

 

5.26 Similar to the previously refused application, the proposed dwellings would be set behind existing 

residential development along Church Road, where the settlement pattern is characterised by 

relatively sparse, low-lying development along its eastern side, set tight to the road with limited 

development set back from the building line. By contrast, the proposed development, the subject of 

this application, would extend beyond the village envelope to the east, with residential development 

occupying the majority of the site and an area of open space to the east.  

 

5.27 Your officers are of the opinion that the proposal would result in a transformative impact upon the 

settlement pattern of the village, where existing development has tended to hug Church Road, 

leading to an open and decidedly rural setting to the northern part of the village. Given size and 

location of the site and that it is comprised of, and bound for the most part by, undeveloped land, 

your officers consider that the proposal would result in the loss of an area of open space that makes 

an important contribution to the character or appearance of the area and would fail to form a logical 

complement to the existing scale and pattern of development in the area.  

 

5.28 Policy OS2 goes on to state that in the AONB, great weight should be given to conserving 

landscape and scenic beauty and development should comply with national policy concerning major 

development.  

 

Page 22



5.29 In terms of housing development in the Cotswolds National Landscape, supporting text paragraph 

5.39 of the WOLP states that: 

 

'Within the Cotswolds AONB, windfall housing proposals on undeveloped land adjoining built up areas will be 

particularly closely scrutinised and will only be supported where there is convincing evidence of a specific local 

housing need such as needs identified through a neighbourhood plan or affordable housing needs specific to a 

particular settlement, for example through a rural exception site'. 

 

5.30 Paragraph 176 of the NPPF states: 

 

'Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, 

the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the highest status of protection in relation 

to these issues'. 

 

5.31 Policy CE1 of the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan 2023-2025, which is a material consideration 

in this assessment as referenced in WOLP Policy EH1, states that "proposals that are likely to impact 

on, or create change in, the landscape of the Cotswolds National Landscape, should have regard to, 

be compatible with and reinforce the landscape character of the location, as described by the 

Cotswolds Conservation Board's Landscape Character Assessment and Landscape Strategy and 

Guidelines. There should be a presumption against the loss of key characteristics identified in the 

landscape character assessment." 

 

5.32 With regards to potential impacts on landscape character, the proposed development is located in 

the 'Pastoral Lowland Vale' Landscape Character Type, LCT 17b in the Cotswolds Conservation 

Board's Landscape Character Assessment ('LCA'). The key characteristics of the LCA include being a 

'generally human scale intimate landscape, but with intermittent open expansive character and 

expansive views in some areas with views possible across flat landscape bordering river channels'. 

The landscape is described as 'productive and verdant' with 'lush improved and semi improved 

pastures'. Settlement patterns are 'sparse' which 'emphasises the landscapes rural, agricultural 

character'.  

 

5.33 In terms of the landscape sensitivity of the Pastoral Lowland Vale, the assessment notes: 

 

• 'Limited woodland cover, a strong rural character, sparse settlement pattern and the proximity to 

elevated viewpoint opportunities on the neighbouring Farmed Slopes increases the sensitivity of the 

Pastoral Lowland Vale landscape to large scale built development. 

 

• -Existing vale settlements may have the capacity to accommodate some development where this does 

not interfere with or detract from their landscape setting.' 

 

5.34 The Cotswolds AONB (CNL) Landscape Strategies and Guidelines are relevant in assessing the 

suitability of residential expansions to existing settlements. They indicate that new development 

should inter alia, 'maintain the open, sparsely settled character of the Pastoral Lowland Vale by 

limiting new development to existing settlements, avoid development that will intrude negatively into 

the landscape and cannot be successfully mitigated, for example, extensions to settlements in areas of 

open landscape, ensure that new development does not adversely affect the wider rural landscape 

and views to and from the AONB and ensure that new development does not adversely affect 

settlement character and form'.   

 

Page 23



5.35 The West Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment 1998 ('WOLA') is listed in the supporting text to 

WOLP Policy EH2 and forms a material consideration in this assessment. In terms of the existing 

landscape character of the area, the application site lies within the 'Upper Evenlode Valley' Character 

Area as identified in the WOLA and at a finer grain, within the 'Semi-enclosed Clay Wolds' (large 

scale) Landscape Type.  

 

5.36 Officers consider that the weight to be given to the advice in the WOLA is increased by the 

references in the NPPF to the importance of having such guidance available in attempting to achieve 

high quality design outcomes as well as its clear role as a supporting document to WOLP Policy EH2. 

 

5.37 The WOLA describes the key landscape and visual features of the Upper Evenlode Valley as having 

'a strong landscape structure of thick hedgerows and frequent hedgerow trees', and is 'typically a 

low-lying farmed landscape with a patchwork of large fields under arable and smaller-scale floodplain 

pastures along the river valley, bounded by strong hedgerows and occasional locks and belts of 

woodland'. The landscape type at a finer grain is described as 'large-scale, softly rolling farmland' with 

'some visual containment provided by blocks and belt of woodland' and 'moderate' intervisibility.  

 

5.38 The LVIA submitted in support of this application has been updated following the refusal of 

application 23/02745/FUL to include an up to date review of relevant policies, and further 

consideration to the likely landscape impacts of development within the Blue/Green Corridor (BG3) 

and the likely visual effects within the Key View KOV 11 (Lancut Lane/Green Lane) identified in the 

Milton under Wychwood Neighbourhood plan (appendix 8 - Key Views). In conclusion, the 

submitted LVIA recognises the high value of the receiving landscape, particularly with regard to the 

landscape setting of the village, identifying moderate landscape harm on a site level and in terms of 

impact upon settlement character. This harm would be sought to be mitigated over the medium to 

long term by mitigation planting which would not fully obscure views of the proposed development, 

but would gradually integrate it within the settlement edge context.  

 

5.39 In visual impact terms, officers acknowledge that the wider perception of the site in the landscape is 

relatively limited but note the proximity of the site to Public Rights of Way ('PRoW') (Nos.301/10/10, 

301/10/20 and No.301/6/30) and the village green, from where the proposed dwellings would be 

visible. As such, any adverse visual impacts would arise predominantly to highly sensitive visual 

receptors (such as walkers). 

 

5.40 PRoW No.301/10/10 passes adjacent to the site and Spring Cottage. Officers note that this 

viewpoint (viewpoint 6 in the submitted LVIA) is taken from the ancient 'Lancut footpath', identified 

within Key View 11 of the MuW NP as providing 'unspoilt views of paddocks and wooded footpath' 

(MuW NP Appendix 8). Medium-high adverse visual impacts are identified from viewpoint 6 in the 

submitted LVIA and officers recognise the fundamental change in character and appearance that 

would result from the proposed development from this viewpoint. Similar impacts are also identified 

from viewpoints 7-11 in the submitted LVIA, all from the footpaths identified above as well as from 

the village green.  

 

5.41 Overall, your officers are of the opinion that the proposal would fail to conserve or enhance 

landscape and scenic beauty within the CNL as required by Section 15 of the NPPF, Policy EH1 of 

the WOLP and the relevant material considerations outlined, as well as harming the rural setting and 

settlement pattern of the village as well as key views identified in the MuW NP and from adjacent 

PRoWs and the village green.  

 

Page 24



5.42 These harms identified will be balanced against the wider planning benefits of the scheme in the 

conclusion of this report in accordance with paragraphs 11(d) and 183 of the NPPF.  

 

Public Open Space  

 

5.43 The development comprises an area of public open space on the eastern part of the site which 

includes a network of pedestrian footpaths connecting to the existing public rights of way around the 

site.  

 

5.44 Policy OS4 requires proposals to enhance local green infrastructure and its biodiversity, including 

the provision of attractive, safe and convenient amenity open space commensurate with the scale and 

type of development, with play space where appropriate. Policy T3 states that all new development 

will be located and designed to maximise opportunities for walking, cycling and the use of public 

transport.  

 

5.45 Your officers are of the opinion that this proposal would comply with these policies and provide a 

comparatively large area of open space which will provide improved pedestrian connections into the 

village. While this is a benefit of the scheme, and is something that would serve any future occupants 

of the development well, your officers recognise that existing local residents already benefit from the 

large village green directly south of the site, which includes a sports pitch, tennis courts and a 

recreation park, so the weight given to the provision of this open space as a wider benefit serving the 

existing community is limited.  

 

Highway Impact and Pedestrian Accessibility  

 

5.46 The Local Highway Authority has raised an objection to the application on the grounds that the 

proposal fails to demonstrate safe and suitable access for all users contrary to policy T2 of the Local 

Plan 2031 and paragraphs 114 and 116 of the NPPF. A full version of the LHA's response is available 

on the Council's website but the key points raised relate to the fact that the street hierarchy in 

combination with the Highfields development along Church Street creates an environment that is not 

legible for road users leading to potential for conflicts, and that the access through the Highfields 

development and particularly the junction with Church Road has not been demonstrated to be safe 

and suitable for all users. 

 

5.47 The proposal does include new public footpath links. The County Council has states that if the 

application were to be approved, despite their objection, then an obligation to enter into a S278 

Agreement will be required to secure mitigation/improvement works, including surfacing upgrades to 

the right of way network.  

 

Residential Amenity 

 

5.48 Your officers consider that it is possible that 16 units could be accommodated on the site and there 

is no reason to believe that suitable interface distances and relationships as to regards adequate light 

could not be provided in respect of the application site itself, given the indicative layout provided. 

These matters would be fully assessed and taken account of at reserved matters stage if the 

overriding refusal reasons did not apply. There is also no reason to believe that existing properties to 

the south and east would be materially affected in terms of overlooking or loss of light as a result of 

the siting of the proposed dwellings.  

 

 

Page 25



Flood Risk 

 

5.49 The Local Lead Flood Authority has raised no objections to the application based on the Flood Risk 

Assessment and SuDS submitted to support the application.  

 

Biodiversity 

 

5.50 Policy EH3 sets out that the biodiversity of West Oxfordshire shall be protected and enhanced to 

achieve an overall net gain in biodiversity and minimise impacts on geodiversity. This includes 

protecting and mitigating for impacts on priority habitats, protected species and priority species, both 

for their importance individually and as part of a wider network. From 12th Feb 2024, it is also 

mandatory for all development (other than some exemptions) to deliver 10% biodiversity net gain 

under Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the 

Environment Act 2021).  

 

5.51 The Council's Ecologist has objected to the application on the grounds that insufficient information 

has been provided to demonstrate that the biodiversity net gain objective can be met. Further, 

insufficient information has been submitted, in particular, ecological survey information, assessment 

and/or mitigation to enable the LPA to fully assess the extent to which species and habitats, including 

great crested newts and reptiles, which are protected.  

 

5.52 As such, the LPA are unable to carry out their statutory duty in this regard. If the overriding refusal 

reasons did not apply, then your officers would have sought to address this with the applicants.  

 

Archaeology 

 

5.32 The County Archaeologist has raised no objections to the application, subject to the imposition of 

a pre-commencement condition which would have been imposed on the consent had the overriding 

refusal reasons not applied.  

 

Other Infrastructure 

 

5.53 Should the application be approved, the County Council has requested financial contributions 

towards the following infrastructure:  

 

Waste Management - £1630  

 

Secondary School provision: £103,968  

 

5.54 The School Place Planning Lead officer has stated:  

 

'Milton-under-Wychwood is in the designated area of Burford School for secondary education. Burford School 

has recently increased its admission number from 210 to 240 in response to the rising demand for places at 

the school. As of January 2024 there were 1,461 pupils on roll. The Department for Education has recently 

conducted a full review of the school's current accommodation capacity, and has identified this as being 

sufficient for 1,459 pupils. The school is therefore already operating at above its physical capacity, and this 

pressure is expected to be sustained. To address this shortfall, the Academy Trust are going through a process 

of reviewing the school estate, and have identified the need to invest significantly in its accommodation. The 

county council seeks developer contributions towards the necessary capital investment to ensure the school 

has sufficient accommodation to meet the rising demand for secondary school places.' 

Page 26



 

5.55 If the overriding refusal reasons did not apply then your officers would have sought to secure these 

contributions via a S106 agreement.  

 

Conclusion and Planning Balance  

 

5.56 As the LPA cannot demonstrate a 5YHLS, the tilted balance as set out in paragraph 11d of the 

NPPF applies. At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development and 

paragraph 11 advises that for decision-making this means approving development proposals that 

accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay, or where policies that are most 

important for determining the application are out-of-date, permission should be granted unless: 

 

I. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance 

provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or  

II. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 

assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.  

 

5.57 The site is located within the Cotswolds National Landscape. Paragraph 182 of the NPPF sets out 

that:  

 

'Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, 

the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty which have the highest status of protection in relation to 

these issues. The conservation and enhancement of wildlife and cultural heritage are also important 

considerations in these areas, and should be given great weight in National Parks and the Broads. The scale 

and extent of development within all these designated areas should be limited, while development within their 

setting should be sensitively located and designed to avoid or minimise adverse impacts on the designated 

areas.’ 

 

5.58 Paragraph 183 of the NPPF goes on to state:  

 

When considering applications for development within National Parks, the Broads and Areas of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty, permission should be refused for major development other than in exceptional circumstances, 

and where it can be demonstrated that the development is in the public interest. Consideration of such 

applications should include an assessment of: 

 

a) the need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, and the impact of 

permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy; 

b) the cost of, and scope for, developing outside the designated area, or meeting the need for it in some 

other way; and 

c) any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational opportunities, and the extent 

to which that could be moderated.  

 

5.59 The NPPF seeks to significantly boost the supply of homes and the proposal would make a modest 

contribution to housing supply and would provide both affordable and custom/self-build housing.  

The development would also provide short term and long term economic benefits through 

employment during the build process and increased expenditure in the local area. However, given 

the limited scale of the development minor weight is attached to these benefits.  

 

5.60 Further, as set out in the report above, the provision of the public open space and connections to 

the existing footpath network are also considered to be modest benefits which would serve the 

Page 27



future occupants of the development but with limited wider benefit to the existing community, so 

little weight is given to these in the wider planning balance.  

 

5.61 Moving to the adverse impacts. For the reasons outlined in the report above, your officers are of 

the opinion that the proposal would result in a transformative impact upon the settlement pattern of 

the village which currently benefits from an open and decidedly rural setting to the northern part of 

the village. Your officers also consider that the proposal would result in the loss of an area of open 

space that makes an important contribution to the character or appearance of the area and would fail 

to form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development in the area.  

 

5.62 Further, the development would fail to conserve or enhance landscape and scenic beauty within the 

CNL as required by Section 15 of the NPPF, Policy EH1 of the WOLP and the relevant material 

considerations outlined, as well as harming the rural setting and settlement pattern of the village as 

well as key views identified in the MuW NP and from adjacent PRoWs and the village green. 

 

5.63 The Local Highway Authority has also identified that the proposal fails to demonstrate safe and 

suitable access for all users contrary to Policy T2 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and 

paragraphs 114 and 116 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

5.64 Finally, the application fails to satisfactorily demonstrate that it can deliver the required biodiversity 

net gain in accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by 

Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 2021), and insufficient information has been submitted in 

particular, ecological survey information, assessment and/or mitigation to enable the LPA to fully 

assess the extent to which species and habitats. 

 

5.65 Considering the test set out in paragraph 183 of the NPPF, your officers do not consider that it has 

been satisfactorily demonstrated that there are exceptional circumstances which mean this major 

development should be allowed in the CNL, nor has it been demonstrated that the development is in 

the public interest, given that given that only limited weight is afforded to the provision of 16 

dwellings towards the housing land supply shortfall, including the very modest benefits of providing 8 

affordable and 8 self-build dwellings towards the respective need for each identified. Further, the 

highways safety harm identified is not in the public interest.   

 

5.66 Turning to the wider planning balance as directed by paragraph 11 of the NPPF.  Taking all of the 

above into consideration, it is officer opinion that the adverse impacts of granting planning permission 

with regard to the impact on the protected landscape, setting and character of the village, ecological 

impacts and highways safety would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits and as such, 

planning permission should be refused. 

 

6 REASONS FOR REFUSAL 

 

 

1. The proposed development, by reason of its location, would result in a transformative impact upon 

the settlement pattern of the village which currently benefits from an open and decidedly rural 

setting to the northern part of the village. The proposal would result in the loss of an area of open 

space that makes an important contribution to the character or appearance of the area and would 

fail to form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development in the area. The 

proposal is contrary to policies OS2, OS4 and H2 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the 

West Oxfordshire Design Guide, the Milton under Wychwood NP and the relevant provisions of 

the NPPF. 

Page 28



 

2. The development, by reason of its siting and extent, would fail to conserve or enhance landscape 

and scenic beauty within the Cotswold National Landscape, as well as harming the rural setting and 

settlement pattern of the village and key views identified in the MuW NP, from adjacent PRoWs 

and the village green. It has not been satisfactorily demonstrated that there are exceptional 

circumstances to allow major development in the CNL, nor has it been demonstrated that the 

development is in the public interest. The development is contrary to policies OS2, OS4, H2, EH1, 

and EH2 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide, the Milton 

under Wychwood NP and the relevant provisions of the NPPF, in particular paragraphs 182 and 

183. 

 

3. The proposed development fails to demonstrate safe and suitable access for all users contrary to 

Policy T2 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and paragraphs 114 and 116 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework. 

 

4.  Insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate the biodiversity gain objective can be 

met and the biodiversity gain condition can be discharged successfully in accordance with Schedule 

7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the Environment 

Act 2021). 

 

5. Insufficient information has been submitted, in particular, ecological survey information, assessment 

and/or mitigation to enable the LPA to fully assess the extent to which species and habitats, 

including great crested newts and reptiles, which are protected under the WCA 1981 (as 

amended), The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) or listed as 

Species of Principal Importance for biodiversity conservation under Section 41 of the Natural 

Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (as amended) may be affected by the proposed 

development. The LPA is therefore unable to fully assess the development in respect of the 

requirements of the NPPF (in particular Chapter 15), the Planning Practice Guidance; West 

Oxfordshire District Council's Local Plan Policy EH3; and ODPM Circular 06/2005. The LPA is also 

unable to fully assess the proposals in the light of the 3 derogation tests, as described in ODPM 

Circular 06/2005 and The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). 

 

6. The benefits associated with the provision of 16 dwellings (8 affordable and 8 self-build), the 

potential for biodiversity net gain, and provision of public open space and footpath upgrades, are 

afforded little weight given the modest scale of the development and the limited contribution that 

these houses would make to the overall housing land supply shortfall. Turning to the wider planning 

balance as directed by paragraph 11d of the NPPF, the adverse impacts of granting planning 

permission with regard to the impact on the protected landscape (the CNL), setting and character 

of the village, and highways safety would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits.  The 

development is contrary to policies OS2, OS4, H2, EH1, EH2 and T2 of the West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide, the Milton under Wychwood 

Neighbourhood Plan, and the provisions of the NPPF, in particular paragraphs 11d and 183. 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Stephanie Eldridge 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 7th August 2024 

  

Page 29



Application Number 24/01566/FUL 

Site Address Land Adjacent To 

10 Coombes Close 

Shipton Under Wychwood 

Oxfordshire 

  
Date 7th August 2024 

Officer Sarah Hegerty 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Shipton Under Wychwood Parish Council 

Grid Reference 427606 E       217993 N 

Committee Date 19th August 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

 

Erection of a detached dwelling with off street parking and associated works. 

 

 

 

Page 30



Applicant Details: 

 

Mr Dean Gilbert 

C/O Delta House Limited 

Phoenix Business Centre 

Rosslyn Crescent 

Harrow 

Middlesex 

HA1 2SP 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

OCC Highways Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to condition  
 

WODC Drainage  No Objection Subject to condition  
 

District Ecologist  No Comment Received.  
 

Env Health Noise And Amenity Mr ERS Pollution Consultation I raise no objections.  
 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

 No Comment Received.  

 

Parish Council  Parish Council wishes to object to this application for the following 

reasons. 

1. Flood risk - We believe that, when Coombes Close was first 

developed, the land adjacent to No 10 was included as amenity land, 

for uses including drainage of runoff from the woodland behind. Our 

objection to the previous application due to flood risks has not been 

addressed; drainage on any dwelling at this address needs 

consideration. We would encourage that specialist advice be sought. 

2. Neighbourliness and design/layout - Additionally, the property 

proposed by this application has a footprint too large for the plot 

size. 

This creates a cramped and contrived design, and a loss of privacy  
2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 1 objection comment received:  

 

22/00041/OUT approved the principle of development at the proposed sites with all details of the 

layout, scale, appearance, access and landscaping reserved.  

 

22/03291/FUL, which proposed the erection of a detached 3 bed dwelling with off street parking for two 

cars, new vehicle crossover and associated works was refused on 15th February 2023 for reasons that 

included: 

 

Page 31



'By reason of its scale, siting and design the proposed development would appear cramped and contrived 

in this location. The application is therefore contrary to West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 Policies OS2 

and OS4, relevant paragraphs of the NPPF 2021, and the West Oxfordshire 

Design Guide 2016.' 

 

The Design and Access Statement submitted with 24/01566/FUL states that:  

 

'The design and access principles established with the approved outline application remain. 

Matters of Design and Access remain as previously approved, with the following minor adjustments' 

However, these are the reserved matters for which the application (24/01566/FUL) is seeking approval. 

The scale, siting and design proposed in 24/01566/FUL is broadly similar to that proposed in 

22/03291/FUL. There does not appear to be any attempt to address the reasons for refusal of the 

previous application, or significantly alter the scale, siting or design of the proposed development. 

The current application should be refused for the same reason as the previous application. 

The application form included with 24/01566/FUL states that it is unknown how foul sewage will be 

disposed of, and that it is unknown whether a connection will be made to the existing drainage system. 

Given that there is an existing mains sewer on the street and that there would seem to be 

little space available for the provision of a septic tank and soak away, it seems likely that the proposed 

property would connect to the existing foul sewer. 

 

It is widely recognised that Milton under Wychwood Sewage Treatment Works is already operating at 

input levels well in excess of its design capacity. In 2023, 2142 hours of spills of untreated sewage from 

the works were recorded across 126 days (Thames Water EDM Annual Returns 

2023). Permitting this development would only increase the pressure on the sewage treatment works. 

The proposed development would result in a loss of open space as defined in Annex 2 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework. 

 

At the time we purchased our property in 2011 we were advised that the land adjacent to 10 Coombes 

Close was designated as amenity land/ public open space and, as such, was not available for 

development. Although it is unlikely that the plot of land has any significant ecological 

importance, it does serve an important purpose in acting as a 'breathing space' for the development, 

reducing the temperature during increasingly frequent heat waves during the summer and acts as a 

porous area that increases drainage and reduces run off during intense rainfall. Indeed, the National 

Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 124) recognises that some undeveloped land can perform many 

functions, such as for wildlife, recreation, flood risk mitigation, cooling/shading, carbon storage or food 

production. 

 

The West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 contains a policy (Policy OS4 - High Quality Design) that 

requires new developments to: 

 

demonstrate resilience to future climate change, particularly increasing temperatures and flood risk, and 

the use of water conservation and management measures; and enhance local green infrastructure and its 

biodiversity, including the provision of attractive, safe and convenient amenity open space 

commensurate with the scale and type of development, with play space where appropriate. 

If the land next to 10 Coombes Close was considered to fulfil such a requirement at the time of 

development of Coombes Close, it should still be required to fulfil that function now. The density of 

housing on Coombes Close already appears high in comparison to other areas of the village and 

the proposed development would increase that and reduce the open aspect of the neighbourhood. 

Page 32



During the flooding in July 2007, 4 Coombes Close flooded as a result of surface water run off (WODC 

Parish Flood Report: Shipton-Under-Wychwood, May 2008). During intense rainfall water runs down 

the road, so it is apparent that the existing drainage is already inadequate.  

 

Reducing the amount of porous land area can only exacerbate this issue. I am concerned that this makes 

it more likely that our houses could be flooded.  

There is no drawing included with the application that shows the location of the proposed development 

in relation to the existing properties on the street in plan view. This makes it impossible to assess the 

amenity impact of any potential overshadowing leading to loss of sunlight, particularly given the 

proximity of the proposed development to the boundary with 10 Coombes Close. It is not apparent 

from the drawings that number 10 has a single storey rear extension and conservatory. Given that the 

proposed development is set further back from the street than number 10 the potential for loss of 

sunlight should be considered in more detail.  

 

The Design and Access Statement submitted with the application states that: 

 

'The 3 bed 5 person house has a gross internal floor area of 84 sq. m, with 2 parking bays at the front 

and secure garden to the rear. The design layouts and room dimensions and areas of the proposed 

development meet the minimum area requirements as noted in the national housing 

standards.' 

 

However, 'Technical housing standards - nationally described space standard' indicates that the minimum 

gross internal floor area for a 2 storey 3 bed, 5 person house should be 93 sq m. 

 

The proposed development would lead to a loss of parking spaces on a street where parking is already 

an issue as few properties have off-street parking. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The applicants Design and Access Statement is concluded as follows:  

 

The design and access principles established with the approved outline application remain. Matters of 

Design and Access remain as previously approved, with the following minor 

adjustments: 

 

USE & AMOUNT- Previously approved - The proposal delivers a two-storey traditional detached house. 

The 2bed 4 person house has a gross internal floor area of 79 sq. m, with 2 parking bays at the 

front and secure garden to the rear. It meets the minimum area requirements as noted in 

the national housing standards. As currently proposed - The proposal delivers a two-storey traditional 

detached house with site layout and overall building footprint as previously approved. The 3 bed 5 

person house has a gross internal floor area of 84 sq. m, with 2 parking bays at the front and secure 

garden to the rear. The design layouts and room dimensions and areas of the proposed development 

meet the minimum area requirements as noted in the national housing standards. 

 

LAYOUT – The internal layout of the proposed development has been adjusted to meet the 

requirements of the areas and room dimensions prescribed within the national space standards. The 

addition of a first floor gable feature above the previously proposed ground 

floor entrance bay provides the additional floor area required to accord with the national 

space standards, without the need to further increase the principal ground floor footprint area form the 

approved footprint. The proposal to incorporate a gabled feature into the 

Page 33



front facing face accords with similar contemporary properties within the area and would not introduce 

a feature alien to the surrounding area.  

 

LANDSCAPING – retained as approved. 

 

SCALE & APPEARANCE - The form and character of the property is retained largely as 

previously approved, though the overall storey heights, eaves roof level and roof pitch have 

been reduced from the previously approved heights to better sit in the context of the 

existing adjacent properties and wider street-scene, whilst maintaining the minimum 

standards to accord with current national approve space standards.  

 

ACCESS – retained as approved. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT  

 

Background  

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for the erection of a detached dwelling with off street parking and 

associated works at Land Adjacent to 10 Coombes Close, Shipton-under-Wychwood. The majority 

of the application site is laid to grass with a small hardstanding area fronting the street. The land lies 

within both the Shipton-under-Wychwood Conservation Area (SUWCA) and Cotswolds National 

Landscape (CNL) (formally AONB). 

 

5.2 This application is brought before Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee due to the 

conflict between the officer recommendation and the view of the Shipton-under-Wychwood Parish 

Council, who have objected to the scheme.  

 

Relevant Planning History  

 

5.3 22/00041/OUT ("the 2022 consent") - Erection of a two storey detached dwelling with associated 

parking and works (Outline planning with all matters reserved). Approved.  

 

5.4 22/03291/FUL - Erection of detached 3 bed dwelling with off street parking for two cars, new vehicle 

crossover and associated works. – Refused. Reason:  

Page 34



 

1. The proposed dwelling, by reason of the inclusion of dormer windows to the rear elevation, would give 

rise to overlooking impacts to the private amenity space serving 10 Coombes Close and 11 St Michaels 

Close resulting in loss of privacy and perception of loss of privacy impacts causing unacceptable levels of 

harm to neighbouring occupiers. 

2. By reason of its scale, siting and design the proposed development would appear cramped and 

contrived in this location. 

 

Planning Considerations  

 

5.5 Taking into account planning policy, history, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties, officers are of the opinion that the key considerations in the assessment of this 

application are: 

 

• Principle; 

• Siting, Design, Scale and Form;  

• Impact upon the SUWCA; 

• Neighbourliness; 

• Impact upon the CNL; 

• Highways Impact; 

•  Drainage; and 

•  Ecology. 

 

5.6 Each will be considered in the following sections of this report. 

 

Principle  

 

5.7 The principle of development to provide a single unit of residential accommodation on this site has 

been established under the 2022 consent. The application site lies within the built up area of Shipton-

under-Wychwood, which is classified as a village in the WOLP (Table 4b). WOLP Policy OS2 outlines 

that the villages are 'suitable for limited development which respects local character and local 

distinctiveness and would help to maintain the vitality of the community'.  

 

5.8 The proposed development is therefore considered acceptable in principle subject to assessment 

against the general principles of WOLP Policy OS2 and other relevant plan policies and material 

considerations below. 

 

Siting, Design, Scale and Form  

 

5.9 Policies OS2 and OS4 seek a high quality of design.  Policy OS2 clearly advises that new development 

should be proportionate and appropriate in scale to its context and should form a logical 

complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and should relate well to the character 

of the area.  Similarly Policy OS4 seeks a high quality of design that respects, inter alia, the historic 

and architectural character of the locality, contributes to local distinctiveness and, where possible, 

enhances the character and quality of the surrounding.  

  

5.10 The NPPF also makes it clear that creating high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what 

the planning and development process can achieve and the recently published National Design Guide 

provides advice on the components of good design which includes the context for buildings, form 

and scale, appearance, landscaping, materials and detailing.  

Page 35



 

5.11 The existing site appears underutilised and does not contribute significantly to the character and 

appearance of the area. The proposed dwelling would be set back behind No 10 Coombes Close 

following the staggered building line of properties within the Close to the north and south. The 

proposed siting of the dwelling is therefore considered to form a logical compliment to the existing 

pattern of development in the locality.  

 

5.12 In terms of design, scale and form, the dwelling has been reduced in overall scale from the previous 

refused scheme with a 1m reduction in the height and loss of the 2nd floor accommodation. The 

dwelling would be set over a footprint of 8.2 m wide by 6.2m deep and take a simple two storey 

dual-pitched form reaching 7.5m to the ridge with an eaves height of 4.9m. There is a smaller dual 

pitch element which projects forward less than 1m from the main core of the dwelling with a ridge 

that sits well below the main ridge with an open porch forward of that.   

 

5.13 The building would be finished in coursed yellow sand stone facing under a brown plain tiled roof 

with grey double glazed windows, matching the existing dwellings along Coombes Close. Your 

officers consider that the proposed design, scale and form of the dwelling would be proportionate 

and appropriate in this context. The application is therefore considered to accord with WOLP 

Polices OS2 and OS4 with regard to siting, design, scale and form.  

 

5.14 In terms of the overall space provided for future occupants, the dwelling provides Lounge, Family 

room and Kitchen at ground floor level and 3 bedrooms and family bathroom at first floor level.  

 

5.15 Officers consider the scheme forms a logical compliment to the scale and pattern of development 

for the area and is in keeping with the wider streetscene and is therefore compliant with policies 

OS2 and OS4 of the WOLP and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide and the NPPF.  

 

Impact upon the SUWCA  

 

5.16 Within a conservation area, officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended, which states that, with respect to 

buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 

preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area. WOLP Policy EH10 states that 

'proposals for development in a conservation area will be permitted where it can be shown to 

preserve or enhance its special interest, character and appearance'. Section 16 of the NPPF 

(Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) is also an important material consideration in 

this assessment.  

 

5.17 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining applications, local 

planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the significance 

of heritage assets. It continues that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the 

significance of a designated heritage asset, such as a conservation area, great weight should be given 

to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). 

Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or 

destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear and convincing justification. 

Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a 

designated heritage asset, this harm should harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the 

proposal. 

 

Page 36



5.18 Therefore, the direct effect of the proposed development upon the significance of the identified 

designated heritage assets must be considered in accordance with the NPPF and WOLP Policy EH10.  

 

5.19 In order to assess the impact of the proposed development upon the significance of the heritage 

asset (in this case the SUWCA), it is first necessary to identify the asset's significance. In this case, the 

existing site and its immediate context is characterised by modern housing development of no 

significant archaeological, architectural, artistic or historic interest. Your officers therefore consider 

that the existing site does not contribute to the heritage significance of the SUWCA. Therefore, the 

proposed additional dwelling, which shares the character and appearance of properties in the 

immediate locality, would not significantly impact the significance of the SUWCA and would result in 

a neutral impact upon the character and appearance of the designated heritage asset. The application 

is therefore considered to accord with WOLP EH10 and relevant guidance contained in the NPPF.   

 

Neighbourliness  

 

5.20 WOLP Policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses and not 

have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of minimising adverse 

impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated in Policy OS4, the West 

Oxfordshire Design Guide and the NPPF. 

 

5.21 An Objection to the scheme on neighbourliness grounds has been received by the occupier of No 

8 Coombes Close and the local Parish Council. It is stated that the proposed development would 

result in an unacceptable impact by way of increased overlooking and loss of light to the rear garden 

of No 8.   

 

5.22 Dealing initially with the matter of overlooking, your officers consider the proposal would not 

unacceptably overlook habitable rooms nor private amenity spaces of neighbouring dwellings.  

Dwellings to the south along Coombes Close are physically separated from the application site by a 

shared garage area meaning that no material neighbourliness impacts would result to occupiers to 

the south. Further, by virtue of the proposed fenestration and orientation of proposed and existing 

built form, the proposed dwelling would not result in materially increased levels of overlooking to 

either Nos 1, 3, 8 or 10 Coombes Close. In terms of the potential overlooking impact upon Nos 10 

and 11 St Michaels Close, which border the site to the west, your officers consider that the back-to-

back distances that would result (approximately 28-30m) are sufficient to ensure that adequate levels 

of privacy would be retained. Further, given the scale and nature of the scheme, officers do not 

consider that planning conditions are required to manage the construction process.  

 

5.23 With regard to loss of light and overbearing impact, your officers consider that No 8 Coombes 

Close is located such that the proposed built form would not result in a significant loss of light or 

overbearing impact.  

 

5.24 In terms of the impact upon No 10, the proposed dwelling would not impinge on the 45 degree 

rule with regard to loss of light, and the staggered relationship between the dwellings has direct 

precedent within the Close. Therefore, your officers consider that the application accords with 

WOLP Policies OS2 and OS4 neighbourliness terms.  

 

Impact upon the CNL  

 

5.25 The site is located in an open countryside location within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (AONB). Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act 2000 states 

Page 37



that relevant authorities have a statutory duty to conserve and enhance the natural beauty of the 

AONB.  

 

5.26 WOLP Policy EH1 states: 

 

"In determining development proposals within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 

and proposals which would affect its setting, great weight will be given to conserving and enhancing the areas 

natural beauty, landscape and countryside, including its wildlife and heritage. This will include consideration of 

any harm to the contribution that the settlement makes to the scenic beauty of the AONB". 

 

5.27 The NPPF states: 

 

"great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, 

the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty which have the highest status of protection in relation to 

these issues". 

 

5.28 The proposed development would be viewed in a wholly residential context and would not be 

perceived in the wider landscape. As such, the proposal would result in a neutral impact upon 

landscape and scenic beauty in the AONB.   

 

Highways Impact  

 

5.29 WOLP Policy OS2 states that new development should be provided with safe vehicular access and 

safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting services and facilities. The existing site benefits 

from vehicular access and the dwelling would be served by two parking spaces, as well as located in 

close proximity to a range of services accessible by foot.  

 

5.30 Consultation with the Local Highways Authority has been carried out and the proposed 

development is considered to result in an acceptable impact upon the local highways network subject 

to the imposition of planning conditions. These conditions seek to ensure that suitable parking spaces 

are retained, the access to the highway is of sufficient standard and cycle parking is incorporated into 

the scheme to promote active travel. The application is therefore acceptable in highways terms.  

 

Drainage  

 

5.31 Concerns have been raised in respect of drainage and potential flooding, including that the increase 

in built form proposed may lead to increase risk of flooding to third parties. The site lies within Flood 

Risk Zone 1 in an area at very low risk from fluvial flooding and the Council's Drainage Officers have 

raised no objection to the application subject to the imposition of a pre-commencement surface 

water drainage condition. Your officers are therefore satisfied that the scheme will be required to 

demonstrate how surface water will be adequately managed prior to construction of the proposed 

dwelling.   

 

 

Ecology and Bidiversity Net Gain (BNG)  

 

5.32 The application site is laid to lawn with a small area of hardstanding which has a low baseline 

number. The inclusion of planting and bird boxes within the scheme has met the 10% net gain 

required for small sites such as this and therefore is compliant with policy and Biodiversity Net Gain 

Page 38



legislation. Officers are yet to have the Biodiversity Officers comments and this will updated prior to 

committee.  

 

Planning Balance  

 

5.33 This assessment has found that the proposal would fully accord with the relevant policies of the 

WOLP and relevant material considerations. However, the LPA accepts that it is at present unable to 

demonstrate a five-year supply of housing land. The NPPF states that where the LPA cannot 

demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites, paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF is engaged 

and there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development unless: 

 

I. "the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance 

provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or  

II. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 

assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole."  

 

5.34 The proposed development would not, in officers view, adversely affect protected areas or assets 

of particular importance and therefore the 'tilted balance' as directed by paragraph 11(d) of the 

NPPF is engaged. Officers must consider whether the adverse impacts of an addition dwelling in this 

location would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. 

 

5.35 The tilted balance does not undermine the pre-eminence of the local development plan in decision-

making and assessment against relevant policies in the WOLP may therefore be weighted in the 

planning balance. However, given the LPA's failure to demonstrate a deliverable five year housing 

land supply, the provisions of the housing locational strategy (WOLP Policy H2) may only be 

afforded limited weight.   

 

5.36 In terms of benefits, the proposed development would make a very small contribution to housing 

supply in the area. Officers acknowledge the economic and social benefits associated with the 

creation of a single addition unit of residential accommodation and the potential for an additional 

household to increase spending in the area and contribute to social cohesion. Officers consider that 

these benefits should be awarded very limited weight given that the scheme would provide just one 

additional unit of housing. 

 

5.37 This assessment has identified no material planning harms that would result from the scheme. 

Given the lack of adverse impacts that would result from the proposal, officers consider that there 

are no adverse impacts that would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits and the 

proposal should be approved. 

 

Recommendation  

 

5.38 In light of the above assessment, the application is considered to accord with West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031 Policies OS1, OS2, OS3, OS4, H2, T1, T3, T4, EH1 and EH10, the NPPF 2021 and 

the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 and is therefore recommended for conditional approval. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

Page 39



 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. Before above ground building work commences, a schedule of materials to be used in the elevations 

of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The development shall be constructed in the approved materials. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 

 

4. Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 

scale and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all materials, 

finishes and colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

before that architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The development shall be carried 

out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character of 

the area. 

 

5. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the means to ensure a maximum water 

consumption of 110 litres use per person per day, in accordance with policy OS3, has been 

complied with for that dwelling and retained in perpetuity thereafter. 

 

REASON: To improve the sustainability of the dwellings in accordance with policy OS3 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

6. The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on 

the approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter 

retained and used for no other purpose. 

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety. 

 

7. The means of access between the land and the highway shall be constructed, laid out, surfaced, lit 

and drained in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority and all ancillary works therein specified shall be undertaken in 

accordance with the said specification before first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 

 

REASON: To ensure a safe and adequate access. 

 

8. Prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved, details of cycle parking to serve the 

dwelling shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The dwelling 

shall not be occupied until the cycle parking spaces required to serve the dwelling have been 

provided in accordance with the approved details. The cycle parking areas so approved shall 

thereafter be permanently retained and kept available for cycle parking. 

 

Page 40



REASON: In the interests of promoting sustainable transport. 

 

9. That, prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 

details of the size, position and construction of the drainage scheme and results of soakage tests 

carried out at the site to demonstrate the infiltration rate. Three tests should be carried out for 

each soakage pit as per BRE 365 with the lowest infiltration rate (expressed in m/s) used for design. 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the first 

occupation of the development hereby approved. Development shall not take place until an 

exceedance flow routing plan for flows above the 1 in 100 year + 40% CC event has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding is not 

exacerbated in the locality (The West Oxfordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, National Planning 

Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance). If the surface water design is not agreed before 

works commence, it could result in abortive works being carried out on site or alterations to the 

approved site layout being required to ensure flooding does not occur. 

 

Contact Officer: Sarah Hegerty 

Telephone Number: 01993 861713 

Date: 7th August 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



Application Number 24/01618/HHD 

Site Address The Lodge  

Pytts Lane 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4SJ 

Date 7th August 2024 

Officer Nathan Harris 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Burford Parish Council 

Grid Reference 425248 E       212074 N 

Committee Date 19th August 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

 

Application Details: 

 

Installation of a new window to north elevation. 

 

 

Page 42



 

Applicant Details: 

Mr H Ashton 

The Lodge  

Pytts Lane 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4SJ 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  No Comment Received.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 None received at the time of writing.  

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The Design and Access Statement is concluded as follows:  

 

The inclusion of a window in the gable end of buildings in Burford is not unusual, particularly on the northern 

face as the town is built on a north-facing slope and the windows provide additional light and a glimpse of the 

Cotswold view across the valley.  

 

The window would overlook the roof of Sydney Cottage on the street-facing side which has no roof lights on 

that aspect. Although the window would be visible from Sydney Cottage's garden, it would not be possible to 

see into the garden from the window because of the thickness of the Lodge's gable wall in which the window 

would sit. Accordingly, Sydney Cottage garden would not be overlooked. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H6NEW Existing housing 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for the installation of a new window to the north elevation of The 

Lodge, Pytts Lane in Burford.  

 

5.2 The dwelling is a grade II listed building sited within the Burford Conservation Area and Cotswold 

National Landscape.  

 

Page 43



5.3 An application for listed building consent has also been submitted for the proposed works.  

 

5.4 The application is before Members of the sub-committee for consideration as the applicant is Cllr 

Hugo Ashton.  

 

5.5 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

• Design and Impact on Heritage Assets 

• Impact on the Cotswolds National Landscape 

• Residential Amenity.  

 

Design and Impact on Heritage Assets 

 

5.6 As the property is a listed building, officers are required to take account of section 66 of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that 

considering development which affects a listed building, the local planning authority shall have special 

regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or of any features of special 

architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Paragraph 205 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance 

of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation. 

 

5.7 Further, as this site is located within a Conservation Area, officers are required to consider section 

72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended, which states 

that, with respect to buildings or other land in a Conservation Area, special attention shall be paid to 

the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  

 

5.8 In this case, your officers have consulted with the Council's Conservation Officers who have raised 

no objections to the proposals on the grounds that the window is modest in size, is of decent 

proportions and traditional form, and that gable end windows are characteristic in this context.  

 

5.9 In light of this assessment, your officers consider that the proposals would conserve the character, 

appearance and architectural integrity of the listed building and the wider Conservation Area.  

 

Impact on the Cotswolds National Landscape 

 

5.10 Paragraph 182 of the NPPF requires great weight to be given to conserving and enhancing 

landscape beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. In this case, given the nature of the 

proposals and the built up residential context of the site, the proposed development will not have 

any visual impact beyond its immediate setting and will therefore conserve the landscape and scenic 

beauty of the Cotswolds National Landscape.  

 

Residential Amenity 

 

5.11 Given the siting of the new window and the relationship of the dwelling with surrounding 

properties, the introduction of the new window would not result in any direct overlooking of 

neighbours. Given the nature of the development, there would be no other material impacts on 

neighbouring properties. As such, your officers consider that the application is acceptable in this 

regard.  

 

Page 44



 

Conclusion 

 

5.12 In light of the above, the application is considered to be acceptable and compliant with policies 

OS2, OS4, EH9, EH10, EH11 and H6 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West 

Oxfordshire Design Guide and the relevant provisions of the NPPF. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance 

of doubt as to what is permitted.  

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Nathan Harris 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 7th August 2024 

  

Page 45



Application Number 24/01619/LBC 

Site Address The Lodge  

Pytts Lane 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4SJ 

Date 7th August 2024 

Officer Nathan Harris 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Burford Parish Council 

Grid Reference 425248 E       212074 N 

Committee Date 19th August 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

 

Internal and external alterations to install a new window to north elevation. 

 

 

Applicant Details: 

Page 46



Mr H Ashton 

The Lodge  

Pytts Lane 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4SJ 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council  No Comment Received.  
 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

 The proposed window is of no great size, it is of decent 

proportions, and it is of traditional form. And such gable end 

windows are indeed fairly characteristic. So, providing that it 

doesn't compromise the flues in the gable end, no objections.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 None received at the time of writing.  

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The Design and Access Statement is concluded as follows:  

 

The inclusion of a window in the gable end of buildings in Burford is not unusual, particularly on the 

northern face as the town is built on a north-facing slope and the windows provide additional light and a 

glimpse of the Cotswold view across the valley. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

H6NEW Existing housing 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2023 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 This application seeks listed building consent for the internal and external alterations to facilitate the 

installation of a new window to the north elevation of The Lodge, Pytts Lane in Burford.  

 

5.2 The dwelling is a grade II listed building sited within the Burford Conservation Area and Cotswold 

National Landscape.  

 

5.3 An application for householder planning permission has also been submitted for the proposed 

works.  

 

Page 47



5.4 The application is before Members of the sub-committee for consideration as the applicant is Cllr 

Hugo Ashton.  

 

5.5 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

• Impact on the listed building 

 

Impact on the listed building 

 

5.6 As the property is grade II listed, the Local Planning Authority are statutorily required to have 

special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, its setting, and any features of special 

architectural or historic interest it may possess, in accordance with Section 16(2) of the Planning 

(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 

5.7 Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining applications, 

local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the 

significance of heritage assets. In particular, paragraph 205 states that when considering the impact of 

a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset - such as a Listed Building, 

or Conservation Area - great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more 

important the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a 

designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), 

should require clear and convincing justification (paragraph 206).  

 

5.8 In this case, your officers have consulted with the Council's Conservation Officers who have raised 

no objections to the proposals on the grounds that the window is modest in size, is of decent 

proportions and traditional form, and that gable end windows are characteristic in this context.  

 

5.9 In light of this assessment, your officers consider that the proposals would conserve the character, 

appearance and architectural integrity of the listed building.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.10 In light of the above, the application is considered to be acceptable and compliant with Section 

16(2) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance 

of doubt as to what is permitted.  

 

Page 48



3. No demolitions, stripping out, removal of structural elements, replacement of original joinery or 

fittings and finishes shall be carried out except where shown and noted on the approved 

drawings. 

 

REASON: To preserve internal features of the Listed Building.   

 

4. All new works and works of making good shall be carried out in materials, and detailed, to 

match the adjoining original fabric except where shown otherwise on the approved drawings. 

 

REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building.  

 

 

Contact Officer: Nathan Harris 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 7th August 2024 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Name and Date of 

Committee 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE:  

19 AUGUST 2024. 

 

Subject AMENDENTS TO SECTION 106 AGREEMENT OF APPLICATION 

REF. 22/2429/FUL – PLAY AREA WALTERBUSH ROAD, CHIPPING 

NORTON.  

Wards Affected Chipping Norton 

Accountable Member Julian Cooper - Chair of Upland sub committee 

Email: julian.cooper@westoxon.gov.uk 

Accountable Officer Abby Fettes- Development Manager 

Email: abby.fettes@westoxon.gov.uk 

Report Author James Nelson- Principal Planning Officer  

Email: james.nelson@westoxon.gov.uk 

Summary/Purpose To enable members to consider whether to proceed with proposed 

amendments to the Section 106 Agreement associated with application 

ref. 22/02429/FUL.  

Annexes None. 

Recommendation That the sub-committee resolves to grant planning permission subject to 

the amended Section 106 agreement.  

Corporate Priorities 1.1. Meeting the Housing needs of our changing population. 

1.2. Climate action.  

Key Decision No  

Exempt 1.3. No  

Consultees/ 

Consultation 

1.4. Full consultation was undertaken in respect of the original application. 

Consultation with legal and the Strategic Housing and Development 

Officer has been carried out in preparing the amended Section 106 

agreement. 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5



 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.1. A revised S.106 agreement has been prepared by the legal team in consultation with the 

Applicant, Planning Officers and the Strategic Housing and Development Officer since 

application ref. 22/02429/FUL was resolved to be approved at this Committee, subject to 

S.106 agreement. Officers therefore seek confirmation from the Committee that the Council 

may proceed to issue the consent in accordance with the resolution of November 2022 and 

subject to the amended S.106 agreement.  

 

1.2. At the November 2022 meeting of this Committee, officers set out that the Council would 

seek to enter into a S.106 agreement to secure the following matters:  

 

 100% affordable housing set at 80% of open market value. 

 To provide and market eight Custom/Self-Build dwelling plots. 

 Apply a local connection test to prospective buyers. 

 Provision and maintenance of community open space. 

 Provision of a community car club and electric vehicle charging points. 

 

1.3. The following alterations to the terms of the draft S.106 agreement as outlined above have 

been made:  

 

 Affordable housing revised from 80% of open market value to 85% prior to 

customisation. 

  

1.4. The strategic housing team have confirmed that the units would remain classified as 

affordable with a 15% discount on market value, as secured in the S.106 in perpetuity. 

Homes England are also in support of the affordable classification. 

 

1.5. The proposed revision from 80% to 85% was approved at the Executive Committee in 

November 2023 although this in no way binds the resolution of this Committee.  

 

1.6. The scheme would still deliver wider community benefits with the provision and 

maintenance of community open space (precise use, layout and landscaping to be agreed in 

accordance with a scheme to be agree with the Council) delivery of eight Custom/Self-Build 

units with local connection test through the S.106 agreement.  

 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1. On 14th November 2022, the Committee resolved unanimously to approve application ref. 

22/02429/FUL for the “Construction of eight custom build semi-detached dwellings, along 

with formation of a new access, landscaping and associated works” subject to the 

completion of the S.106 agreement. 

Page 52



 

2.2. Application ref. 22/02429/FUL has been pending determination since the Committee 

resolved to approve the application in November 2022, subject to the signing of a S.106 

agreement. The application had stalled due to legal complications regarding the transfer of 

land between the Council and the Applicant.  

 

2.3. A revised S.106 agreement has been drafted as outlined. Given the length of time since the 

Committee resolved to approve the application and the changes made to the nature of the 

proposed affordable housing provisions, your officers seek authority to proceed to positive 

determination of the application subject to the amended S.106 agreement.  

 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

3.1. The Committee could decide to not proceed with the amended S.106 agreement. If this were 

the case, the provisions necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms 

would not be secured. In this instance, the application would have to be reconsidered by 

Members and is unlikely to be supported by Officers.    

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. The proposed amendments to the S.106 agreement would result in no additional cost to the 

Council.  

 

5. CONCLUSIONS 

5.1. Your Officers are satisfied that the amended S.106 agreement meets the relevant legal and 

planning policy tests in that it is necessary to make the development acceptable, directly 

related to the development and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 

development. It would secure 100% affordable housing provision, albeit on revised terms, 

secure the Custom/Self-Build element of the scheme, as well as adequately secure the 

provision and maintenance of community open space.  

 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1. Council Legal Services has provided advice throughout the application and has drafted the 

S.106 agreement.  

7. RISK ASSESSMENT 

7.1. As set out in the above report.  

8. EQUALITIES IMPACT 

8.1. Under equality legislation, the Council has a legal duty to pay ‘due regard’ to the need to 

eliminate discrimination and promote equality in relation to:  

 Race  

Page 53



 Disability  

 Gender, including gender reassignment  

 Age  

 Sexual Orientation  

 Pregnancy and maternity  

 Religion or belief 

 

8.2. The Council also has a duty to foster good relations, and to consider the impact of its 

decisions on human rights. The law requires that this duty to pay ‘due regard’ is demonstrated 

in the decision making process. The report does not have a particular impact on any of the 

above groups. 

9. CLIMATE AND ECOLOGICAL EMERGENCIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. Climate and ecological matters covered in November 2022 Committee Report and remain 

unchanged.  

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

10.1. Application ref. 22/02429/FUL and associated papers.  

 

(END) 

 

Page 54



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 1st August 2024 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  21/03388/S73 Stonesfield and Tackley FDO 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 20/01817/FUL to allow changes to layout and 

reduction in scale of the solar PV element of the proposal together with associated works. 

Land Between Woodstock Sewage Works And B4027 Banbury Road Woodstock 

Mr Roy Cox 

 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



DELGAT 
 

2.  23/03235/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of stable outbuilding and replacement single storey outbuilding to provide ancillary 

accommodation. Alterations including erection of single storey link and front extensions and 

new and replacement dormer windows 

8 The Moat Kingham Chipping Norton 

Mr and Mrs Aldridge 

 

 

3.  23/03265/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Change of use of land and buildings to residential use. Alterations including the erection of a 

bat barn and conversion of Garage Barn to provide staff living accommodation 

Ludwell Farm Glympton Woodstock 

Mr R Mills 

 

 

4.  23/03266/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Change of use of land and buildings to residential use. Alterations including the erection of a 

bat barn and conversion of garage barn to provide staff living accommodation 

Ludwell Farm Glympton Woodstock 

Mr R Mills 

 

 

5.  23/03314/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of industrial unit comprising 9 starter units (class use E/B2/B8) together with 

associated bin and cycle stores. (Retrospective). 

Land (E) 403777 (N) 227446 Elmsfield Industrial Estate Chipping Norton 

Mr Stobart 

 

 

6.  23/03327/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Various internal and external alterations to restore, renovate and remodel the house  

(amended design to previously consented scheme 16/03266/HHD) 

Tew Park New Road Great Tew 

Great Tew Estate 

 

 

Page 56



DELGAT 
 

7.  23/03328/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Various internal and external alterations to restore, renovate and remodel the house as an 

amended design to previously consented scheme 16/03266/HHD 

Tew Park New Road Great Tew 

Great Tew Estate 

 

 

8.  24/00112/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Conversion of the first-floor area of the coach house to create an ancillary staff flat together 

with associated works and provision of replacement external stairs (amended plans). 

Pudlicote House Pudlicote Lane Chilson 

Mr And Mrs Wickens 

 

 

9.  24/00113/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Internal and external alterations to convert first-floor area of the coach house to create an 

ancillary staff flat together with associated works and provision of replacement external stairs 

(amended plans). 

Pudlicote House Pudlicote Lane Chilson 

Mr And Mrs Wickens 

 

 

10.  24/00147/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations and refurbishment of Grade II Listed farmhouse and associated barns and stables. 

Demolition of modern construction barn. 

Lower Dornford Farm Wootton Woodstock 

Miss Tammy Scullion 

 

 

11.  24/00148/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to refurbish Grade II Listed farmhouse and associated barns 

and stables. Demolition of modern construction barn. 

Lower Dornford Farm Wootton Woodstock 

Miss Tammy Scullion 

 

 

12.  24/00169/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Internal alterations to construct a new service corridor and staircase providing a direct access 

from the basement to the ground floor kitchen. 

Manor Farm Little Rollright Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Macleod 

 

 

Page 57



DELGAT 
 

13.  24/00301/FUL Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

The restoration, conversion and extension of existing collection of traditional barns to form 

three residential dwellings with associated means of access, enclosure and landscaping. 

Demolition of modern barn structure (amended plans). 

Land South East Of Boltons Farm Boltons Lane Combe 

Miss Tammy Scullion 

 

 

14.  24/00384/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of single storey side and rear extension and first floor extensions 

Lower End Cottage  Lower End Salford 

Dr Garry Nevill 

 

 

15.  24/00396/FUL Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Conversion of existing bungalow to create a one and a half storey dwelling with front and 

rear extensions and associated works 

7 Cadogan Park Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Gavin Copus 

 

 

16.  24/00603/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 21 (scheme for the Electric Vehicle Charging points) 22 (Long-term 

management Scheme) 26 (waste collection strategy) and 27 (scheme setting out details of 

measures to discourage motorcycle use) of Planning Permission 21/00189/FUL - Phase 1 only. 

Land North Of Hill Rise Woodstock 

C/o agent 

 

 

17.  24/00636/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (details of the means of access) of Planning Permission 21/00189/FUL 

Land North Of Hill Rise Woodstock 

C/o agent 

 

 

18.  24/00647/CND Chadlington and Churchill SPL 

  

APPROVED:-REFUSED:- 

Chadlington Manor House East End Chadlington 

Mr and Mrs Hartz 

 

 

Page 58



DELGAT 
 

19.  24/00762/FUL Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement of two existing rooflights and associated reroofing works and repairs to the 

service stairs at Blenheim Palace 

Blenheim Palace Blenheim Park Woodstock 

Kelly Whitton 

 

 

20.  24/00763/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the replacement of the roof lights to the East and 

West Stairwells within Blenheim Palace. External works to include reroofing works of lead 

roof areas around each rooflight with repairs to structure and stone repairs. Internal works 

to include repairs to lath and plaster ceilings. 

Blenheim Palace Blenheim Park Woodstock 

Kelly Whitton 

 

 

21.  24/00770/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear, side and front extensions. Conversion of loft space to create 

additional living space, with addition of dormer to rear roof slope. Formation of vehicle access 

and parking area to front of property. 

58 Banbury Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Robert Hanley 

 

 

22.  24/00775/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Replacement of existing roof tiles with Spanish Slate. 

Cotswold View  Cooks Lane Salford 

Mr Richard Alden 

 

 

23.  24/00796/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 4 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities) and 5 

(details of external lighting) of Planning Permission 23/01641/S73 

Little Manor Church Hill Tackley 

. 

 

 

24.  24/00829/FUL Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Removal of existing 18 golf driving bays and detached blockwork teaching studio. 

Construction of three teaching studios attached to 20 bay golf driving bay range 

Wychwood Golf Club Lyneham Chipping Norton 

Snell Holdings 

 

 

Page 59



DELGAT 
 

25.  24/00811/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Removal of low level garden wall and proposed erection of raised terrace to accommodate a 

new pool. Relocation of existing gardeners outbuilding and construction of a pool facility 

building 

Bruern Abbey Bruern Chipping Norton 

Lord Glendonbrook 

 

 

26.  24/00812/LBC Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

External alterations to include removal of low level garden wall and proposed erection of 

raised terrace to accommodate a new pool 

Bruern Abbey Bruern Chipping Norton 

Lord Glendonbrook 

 

 

27.  24/00830/ADV Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of externally illuminated fascia sign and hanging sign 

22A High Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Nicola Poole 

 

 

28.  24/01268/FUL Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Erection of double carport with minor conjunctive alterations to planning consent 

23/01186/FUL (part retrospective) 

31 Oxford Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

C/o Agent 

 

 

29.  24/00837/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External alterations to existing single storey rear extension to include replacement of 

windows and doors to rear elevation along with replacement and relocation of roof lights, 

rendering cheeks of existing dormers, replacement rainwater goods and repairs and re 

pointing of the existing chimney 

Clover Hall Manor Road Sandford St Martin 

Ms And Mr Khairan And Nathaniel Majid And Cochrane 

 

 

Page 60



DELGAT 
 

30.  24/00838/LBC The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External alterations to existing single storey rear extension to include replacement of 

windows and doors to rear elevation along with replacement and relocation of roof lights, 

rendering cheeks of existing dormers, replacement rainwater goods and repairs and re 

pointing of the existing chimney. Internal alterations to include changes to floor layouts, 

installation of wet under floor heat mat to ground and second floor, replacement flooring, 

replacement and relocation of radiators along with removal of modern hearth and lining of 

existing flues. 

Clover Hall Manor Road Sandford St Martin 

Ms  Khairan Majid and Mr. Nathaniel Cochrane 

 

 

31.  24/00852/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of storage building to two dwellings for seasonal workers accommodation 

Little Crimea New Road Great Tew 

Great Tew and Bantham Estates LLP 

 

 

32.  24/00854/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Internal and external alterations to main house and outbuildings, including two storey 

extension and proposed roof lights to main house. Erection of a carport and conversion of 

dovecote into plant room with the addition of a heat pump and landscape proposals. 

Upper Farm Cleveley Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs Julian & Weini Craughan 

 

 

33.  24/00855/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Internal and external alterations to main house and outbuildings, including two storey 

extension and proposed roof lights to main house. Erection of a carport and conversion of 

dovecote into plant room with the addition of a heat pump and landscape proposals. 

Upper Farm Cleveley Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs Julian & Weini Craughan 

 

 

34.  24/00865/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of a detached oak framed garage. Installation of metal fencing, stone pillars and 

entrance gates. 

Bracken Hill  25 Tanners Lane Burford 

Mr P Randall 

 

 

Page 61



DELGAT 
 

35.  24/00866/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of the detached garage. Erection of a detached annexe building and construction of a 

new boundary garden wall (amended plans) 

Judges Cottage Church Street Kingham 

Mrs M Hancock 

 

 

36.  24/00893/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of extension with additional first floor living space above with 2 dormer windows 

along with construction of a porch overhang to cover existing entrance (Resubmission 

following 23/01207/HHD) 

Cotswold Edge Choice Hill Road Over Norton 

Mr Johnson Chandy 

 

 

37.  24/00876/FUL Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of existing garage and stables and construction of a new dwelling in rear garden. 

Construction of new garage to side of 

existing dwelling. 

73 High Street Finstock Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Griffiths 

 

 

38.  24/00882/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of an outbuilding to provide machinery and garden storage 

Kingham Hill House Kingham Hill Kingham 

The KFH Trust 

 

 

39.  24/00896/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed garage conversion and addition of first floor dormer 

8 Home Farm Close Shipton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs Tremlett 

 

 

40.  24/00954/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of garden shed and greenhouse and erection of a workshop for hobby purposes. 

Cotswold 7 Plum Lane Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mrs Amanada Henriques 

 

 

Page 62



DELGAT 
 

41.  24/00924/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of a single storey rear extension and modification of an existing window 

Beyond Orchard Field Lane Bladon 

Newton 

 

 

42.  24/00942/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of greenhouse. 

Hackers End Hackers Lane Churchill 

Mr Larry Cross 

 

 

43.  24/00943/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of the existing garage and erection of single storey side extension 

36 Churchill Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Henrique Williams 

 

 

44.  24/00937/FUL Chipping Norton WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement windows 

2 New Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Tim Ringrose 

 

 

45.  24/00947/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Conversion of garage to create additional living space 

12 Regal Lane Long Hanborough Witney 

Julian Followell 

 

 

46.  24/00973/FUL Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing outhouse into a two bedroom dwelling. 

Old Bakery Thames Street Charlbury 

Mrs N Lethbridge 

 

 

47.  24/00983/FUL Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey rear extension 

Feathers Hotel 16 - 20 Market Street Woodstock 

Mr Daniel Ede 

 

 

Page 63



DELGAT 
 

48.  24/00984/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the erection of a rear single storey extension 

Feathers Hotel 16 - 20 Market Street Woodstock 

Mr Daniel Ede 

 

 

49.  24/00987/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of single and two storey rear extensions and installation of an upper floor window 

on the side elevation 

15 Cadogan Park Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mrs Rachel Gallagher 

 

 

50.  24/01002/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of existing garage and erection of new outbuilding for library/garden room, plant 

room and garden store. 

Dower House Chastleton Moreton-In-Marsh 

Mrs Catriona Braybrooke 

 

 

51.  24/01003/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to demolish existing wall and Gate (Amended description) 

Dower House Chastleton Moreton-In-Marsh 

Mrs Catriona Braybrooke 

 

 

52.  24/01006/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Construction of seven new guest cabins with associated landscaping and infrastructure (in 

substitution for ten guest cabins approved under 20/01367/FUL and 18/01996/S73). 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House UK Limited 

 

 

53.  24/01010/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of a single storey rear extension 

Chase Cottage  Cooks Lane Salford 

Mrs Alison Craven 

 

 

Page 64



DELGAT 
 

54.  24/01019/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Works to include demolition of walling to create vehicular access onto the highway and 

provision of parking area. 

2 Witney Lane Leafield Witney 

Mr And Mrs Davison 

 

 

55.  24/01030/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton REF 

  

Conversion of stables/tack room into two bedroom living accommodation (Part 

Retrospective) 

South Lawn Farm South Lawn Swinbrook 

Mr Willliam Mackinnon 

 

 

56.  24/01040/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Demolition of existing conservatory and outbuildings and erection of single storey rear 

extension 

61 Heath Lane Bladon Woodstock 

Mr Tom Ross 

 

 

57.  24/01044/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Erection of single storey front extension 

Holly Cottage 74 High Street Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr And Mrs McCann 

 

 

58.  24/01051/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to change the front stable door to a solid white wood door 

27 Nethercote Road Tackley Kidlington 

Christine Gibbens 

 

 

59.  24/01060/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Alterations to include single storey and first floor rear extensions, two storey and first floor 

side extensions, conversion of integral garage to create additional living space with first floor 

extension above, insertion of two bay windows in existing rear elevation and construction of 

new garage together with associated works to reorder property and create ancillary 

accommodation. (amended plans to allow relocation of previously approved garage) 

25 Brookfield Close Milton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Ms Z Worth 

 

 

Page 65



DELGAT 
 

60.  24/01062/S73 Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 4 of Planning Permission 24/00200/FUL to changes to the approved 

plant specification 

The Wychwood Inn High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mrs Tracey Hunt 

 

 

61.  24/01077/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (details of diverted footpath) of Planning Permission 21/01439/FUL 

Water Booster Station North West Of Campsfield Wood Oxford Road Woodstock 

Mr Chris Colloff 

 

 

62.  24/01084/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to allow changes to approved staircase. 

Langlands Farm High Street Finstock 

Mr And Mrs Aronow And Brown 

 

 

63.  24/01085/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Installation of 10.44kW ground mounted solar PV system to serve 1-3 Showell Farm Cottages 

Showell Farm Cottages Little Tew Oxfordshire 

Mr Richmond Watson 

 

 

64.  24/01088/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of roof space above 1st floor flat, including insertion of rear dormer, to create 1 

bedroom with en-suite and office space. 

25 Finsbury Place Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Jason Snell 

 

 

65.  24/01098/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to raise roof height, installation of photovoltaic roof panels and new roof lights. 

Travis Perkins Trading Company Ltd Station Yard Industrial Estate Station Road 

Mr D Gregory 

 

 

Page 66



DELGAT 
 

66.  24/01103/LBC Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to Install a through floor lift. 

Shipton Lodge Cottage High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Sir John Hood 

 

 

67.  24/01106/ADV Burford APP 

  

Erection of two externally illuminated and one internally illuminated hoarding signs. 

Cotswold Gate Care Home 34 Forest Grove Burford 

Porthaven Properties No.3 Limited 

 

 

68.  24/01111/CLE Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (entire building used for storage (B8)) 

Methodist Chapel Chapel Lane Enstone 

Mr Ben Seresin 

 

 

69.  24/01119/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey rear extensions along with installation of an air source heat pump 

and replacement of cladding 

19 Medcroft Road Tackley Kidlington 

Mr and Mrs T Knight 

 

 

70.  24/01126/LBC Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external works including, refurbish windows including replacement of single 

glazing with double glazing, install bathroom extractor fans and roof vents, kitchen extractor 

fans and a wall vent., alterations to external store, and replace flat roof covering and fascia 

boards 

The New House Ascott Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Omar Afridi 

 

 

71.  24/01123/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of a replacement porch 

2 Braybrooke Close Enstone Chipping Norton 

Ian And Karen Barnes And Nelson 

 

 

Page 67



DELGAT 
 

72.  24/01129/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of first floor front extension, single storey porch including new rooflights, 

replacement windows, infilling of existing garage door with new window and timber cladding, 

new timber cladding to existing front gable and updating the existing tile hanging with cedral 

cladding to all existing dormers 

North Bank 105 High Street Finstock 

Mr Simon Rowley 

 

 

73.  24/01125/FUL Burford WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion and extension of the summer house to create a self contained unit for holiday 

letting (retrospective) 

3 Taynton Burford Oxfordshire 

Ms Zara Bayworth 

 

 

74.  24/01135/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension 

38 Over Norton Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Leslie Burton 

 

 

75.  24/01138/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley REF 

  

Erection of a single storey side extension 

3 Woodleys Cottages Woodleys Woodstock 

Mr Moor-Radford 

 

 

76.  24/01142/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

REF 

  

Erection of a single storey garden room. Formation of a new vehicle access for existing 

ancillary buildings 

Broad Close Little Tew Road Church Enstone 

Mr And Mrs Sam Bowman 

 

 

77.  24/01144/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

  

Erection of a detached log cabin/summer house. 

Ivy House The Ridings Leafield 

Mr Anthony Alexander 

 

 

Page 68



DELGAT 
 

78.  24/01145/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Conversion of existing single garage into home studio and erection of 1.8m high timber fence 

with pedestrian access gate across driveway. (Part Retrospective). 

8 Phillips Drive Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr M McGale 

 

 

79.  24/01148/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Conversion of garage and erection of a single-storey rear/side extension (resubmission 

following 23/01077/HHD). 

4 Parklands Freeland Witney 

Mr Andrew Harris 

 

 

80.  24/01162/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Construction of a new open air plant platform over an existing single storey R and D Building, 

including installation of louvre screening and associated works. 

Whiteways Technical Centre Enstone Chipping Norton 

Mr M Cummings 

 

 

81.  24/01178/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Replacement of side extension following demolition of existing and conversion of existing 

garage into living space. 

20 High Street Ascott Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Wendy Hopkins 

 

 

82.  24/01181/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement Garden Gate (Amended Plans). 

Coombe House Taynton Burford 

Ms T Lee 

 

 

83.  24/01176/S73 Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 4 of planning permission 22/01226/FUL to allow the portacabins to 

remain in situ for a further two years. 

The Pavilion Lower End Leafield 

Mr Mike Ody 

 

 

Page 69



DELGAT 
 

84.  24/01197/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of detached garden store and home office. 

1 The Lane Chastleton Moreton-In-Marsh 

Mr Roger Makhlouf 

 

 

85.  24/01201/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of a single-storey rear extension to provide a summer room. 

33 Robinson Avenue Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr R Beverley 

 

 

86.  24/01202/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single-storey front extension to create a disabled shower room and extended 

front entrance. 

14 Woodfield Drive Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr N Baker 

 

 

87.  24/01205/S73 Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 23/00693/FUL to allow repositioning of the 

approved dwelling to accommodate an underground utilities pipeline. 

Skyfall Church Street Stonesfield 

Mr Daniel Hobbs 

 

 

88.  24/01206/LBC The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include alterations to 1960's extension to create new Boot 

Room entrance, window alteration to form new double doors, reinstatement of original 

sashgate to South Elevation and relocation of kitchen. 

Sandford Park Ledwell Road Sandford St Martin 

Mr And Mrs L Ponsonby 

 

 

89.  24/01208/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Erection of a two-storey side/rear extension. Extending existing garage and incorporating new 

pitched roof. 

5 Ashcroft Close Chadlington Chipping Norton 

Mr Harry Wood 

 

 

Page 70



DELGAT 
 

90.  24/01215/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single-storey rear extension. 

106 Oxford Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr John Soroka 

 

 

91.  24/01236/HHD Burford APP 

  

Erection of first-floor extension, single-storey rear extension and erection of garage with 

accommodation over. Remodelling to front elevation, conversion of attic into 

accommodation, installation of solar PV panels to rear elevation, and external alterations. 

(amended plans) 

Barley Park  Shilton Road Burford 

Mr And Mrs H Voisey 

 

 

92.  24/01240/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replace existing roof lantern at rear of dwelling. 

Pytts Piece  157 The Hill Burford 

Mr P Higgs 

 

 

93.  24/01242/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a replacement single storey rear extension 

33 South Street Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mrs Clare Bramley 

 

 

94.  24/01243/LBC The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the erection of a replacement single storey rear 

extension 

33 South Street Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mrs Clare Bramley 

 

 

95.  24/01237/S73 Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 11 of permission 10/1819/P/FP to allow change from natural stone to 

rendered blockwork. 

2 Bell Yard 56 West Street Chipping Norton 

Ms Rachel Griffiths 

 

 

Page 71



DELGAT 
 

96.  24/01245/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of two-storey side extension, new porch and single-storey rear extension. 

10 Grove Road Bladon Woodstock 

Mr & Mrs Croxson 

 

 

97.  24/01250/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Variation of conditions 8 and 9 of permission 21/02682/FUL to allow amendments to the 

approved landscape and lighting designs 

The Fisheries Blenheim Park Woodstock 

Mr Matthew Neilson 

 

 

98.  24/01257/S73 Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of Planning Permission 22/02312/FUL to allow the size of proposed 

garage to be reduced and orientation altered to create additional parking spaces. 

Mount Farm Junction Road Churchill 

Nutbourne 

 

 

99.  24/01258/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (Construction of dormer to rear and addition of 2 vellux windows 

to front slope) 

25 Boundary Close Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Monica Passoni 

 

 

100.  24/01259/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of conditions 2, 3 and 5 of planning permission 22/02262/FUL to allow changes to 

the approved materials and alterations to the fenestration (retrospective) (amended) 

73 Grove Road Bladon Woodstock 

Miss Susan Wills 

 

 

101.  24/01260/LBC Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to create accessible shower room and pantry, including removal of 

modern internal partitions and associated fixtures, erection of stud partitions, formation of 2 

internal openings and associated works. 

Shipton Lodge High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Lady E Hood 

 

 

Page 72



DELGAT 
 

102.  24/01269/S73 Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of conditions 2 and 3 of Planning Permission 20/01933/FUL to allow for alterations 

to the fenestration, roof and design and changes to the approved roof materials. 

Police Station  Banbury Road Chipping Norton 

Mark Edwards 

 

 

103.  24/01283/S73 Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 21/01561/FUL to allow internal and external 

changes to design and layout to create a two bed self contained unit instead of a one bed and 

to establish 4 covered car parking spaces rather than 3. 

Coldwell Brook 52 Shipton Road Ascott Under Wychwood 

Mr And Mrs D Robinson 

 

 

104.  24/01284/S73 Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Variation of conditions 2,3 and 4 of permission 22/00514/HHD to allow alterations to 

approved plans and materials of the proposed extension to dwelling and the gym/studio along 

with alterations to fenestration 

15 Orchard Cottages Chipping Norton Road Chadlington 

Dan and Anita Loxton 

 

 

105.  24/01315/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Erection of single-storey front extension, first floor side extension, and conversion of garage 

into residential living space. 

40 Insall Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Mark Hancock 

 

 

106.  24/01281/CND Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (details of windows and doors) of Planning Permission 21/02994/FUL 

and Listed Building Consent 21/02995/LBC 

Heath Farm Green Lane Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr Roger Coombes 

 

 

107.  24/01296/CLE Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (retention of dwelling house use). 

Chalford Paddocks  Oxford Road Old Chalford 

Mr James George 

 

 

Page 73



DELGAT 
 

108.  24/01298/CLP Freeland and Hanborough REF 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (erection of single storey rear, infill extension). 

Geltwood 200 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Mr Keith Harmsworth 

 

 

109.  24/01306/CND Chadlington and Churchill REF 

  

Discharge of condition 6 (full surface water drainage scheme) of Planning Permission 

23/03419/FUL 

Holybourne House Chapel Road Chadlington 

Mr and Mrs Wigley 

 

 

110.  24/01299/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a two-storey side extension. 

Dene View The Tewer Stonesfield 

Mrs Roslyn Holmes 

 

 

111.  24/01309/HHD Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Erection of single-storey rear extension to form family room and kitchen, loft conversion with 

front dormers and rear roof lights. 

4 Taylors Close Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr and Mrs L Cooper 

 

 

112.  24/01318/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of garden shed, relocate existing green house, erection of low boundary wall to front 

and alterations to ground floor window. 

64 Millwood End Long Hanborough Witney 

Prof. Linda King 

 

 

113.  24/01325/CND The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 9 (details of the access) of Planning Permission 21/02183/FUL 

The Byre Ledwell Chipping Norton 

Paul North 

 

 

Page 74



DELGAT 
 

114.  24/01327/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replace x2 garage doors with x2 patio doors and conversion of garage into ancillary 

accommodation. 

Merry Fields Swan Lane Long Hanborough 

Mr Paul Goodman 

 

 

115.  24/01336/S73 Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of permission 23/00287/FUL to allow internal modifications to layout, 

addition 2no. velux windows to north-west elevation, alterations and reconfiguration to 

north-east layout and elevation and construction of reclaimed stone piers to site entrance. 

(amended) 

Mount Farm Junction Road Churchill 

Nutbourne 

 

 

116.  24/01337/S73 Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of Condition 2 of permission 22/00014/FUL to allow bicycle stores to rear of 

garages, enlarge garage by 1m, additional window to east elevation and construction of 

reclaimed stone piers at entrance to site. 

Mount Farm Junction Road Churchill 

Nutbourne 

 

 

117.  24/01366/CND Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 5 (Landscape and Ecological Management Plan), 6 (Ecological Design 

Strategy), 7 (Construction Environmental Management Plan Biodiversity) and 11 

(Comprehensive Landscape Scheme) of Planning Permission 23/02187/FUL 

Land East Of Hanborough Bowling Club Roosevelt Road Long Hanborough 

Miss Tammy Scullion 

 

 

118.  24/01368/S73 Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 21/00776/FUL to allow design and layout 

changes to both dwellings including the addition of two dormers and two rooflights (plot 1) 

and provision of office with dormer window above garaging (plot 2) (amended). 

Vicarage Field Church Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Cade 

 

 

Page 75



DELGAT 
 

119.  24/01373/CND Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials) and 4 (roof sample) of Planning Permission 

24/00709/S73 

Dean Mill Dean Chipping Norton 

Mr James Buchan 

 

 

120.  24/01381/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Removal of existing garage and conservatory. Works to include construction of single storey 

side extension to create storage shed, new bay window to front elevation, new roof over rear 

extension, re-cladding external walls in stonework, raising roof height to provide additional 

accommodation at first floor and alterations to fenestration. 

12 Cadogan Park Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs Wells 

 

 

121.  24/01378/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (details of access) of Planning Permission 23/01694/HHD 

Orchard House Cozens Lane Kingham 

Ms H Mitchell 

 

 

122.  24/01380/LBC Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of wall mounted hanging sign and erection of new fascia fixed flat signage in position 

of old removed signage (retrospective) 

22A High Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Nicola Poole 

 

 

123.  24/01385/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Proposed loft conversion with 2 roof dormers and 4 side elevation windows (amended) 

10 Rose Drive Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mrs K Bourke 

 

 

124.  24/01386/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Erection of pool house, swimming pool and tennis court. 

The Homestead Frog Lane Milton Under Wychwood 

Jones 

 

 

Page 76



DELGAT 
 

125.  24/01387/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Two storey side extension. Internal and external alterations throughout including replacement 

of windows and new external wall insulation. 

24 Church Road Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr William Hardy 

 

 

126.  24/01388/PN42 Woodstock and Bladon P3APP 

  

Erection of a single storey rear extension (5.3m x 2.25m height to eaves/3.45m max height) 

(amended plans). 

3 Rosamund Drive Woodstock Oxfordshire 

John Britten 

 

 

127.  24/01402/S73 Burford APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of permission 23/01028/FUL to allow changes to plans, to include the 

omission of the proposed internal link between the old library and sixth form block, the 

installation of two new windows and new external door to the old library to create a direct 

external link to the sixth form, along with new soffit and fascia to the existing canopy between 

the two buildings, external redecoration of both buildings and alterations to the proposed 

canopy over dining area 

Burford Comprehensive School  Cheltenham Road Burford 

Mr Alan Staniforth 

 

 

128.  24/01408/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of 6 Solar Photovoltaic Panels 

3 Cotswold Corner Great Rollright Chipping Norton 

Mr Stephen Holt 

 

 

129.  24/01409/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of 6 Solar Photovoltaic Panels facing south. 

5 Hastings Hill Churchill Chipping Norton 

Mr James Foster 

 

 

130.  24/01410/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Two storey infill extension to the existing main factory building and associated works to 

create additional production and plant room areas. 

Whiteways Technical Centre Enstone Chipping Norton 

Mr M Cummings 

 

 

Page 77



DELGAT 
 

131.  24/01411/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External alterations to repair the two cantilever stone staircases located in the Stable 

Courtyard 

Blenheim Palace Blenheim Park Woodstock 

Kelly Whitton 

 

 

132.  24/01412/S73 Burford APP 

  

Variation of condition 6 of permission 21/04123/S73 to allow minor amendments to hard and 

soft landscaping. 

Land West Of Shilton Road Burford 

Porthaven Properties No.3 Limited 

 

 

133.  24/01416/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (Written Scheme of Investigation) of Planning Permission 

24/00346/HHD 

Minster Cottage Church Street Charlbury 

Mrs Kate Smith 

 

 

134.  24/01429/CLP Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (erection of lightweight building for use as occasional teaching 

space). 

Tackley Church Of England Primary School 42 St Johns Road Tackley 

Mrs Karen Ward 

 

 

135.  24/01431/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 5 (details of cycle parking areas), 6 (layout of the car parking area), 12 

(Construction Environmental Management Plan) and 14 (Construction Management Plan) of 

Planning Permission 22/01768/FUL 

1 Rye Grass Woodstock Oxfordshire 

C/O Agent 

 

 

Page 78



DELGAT 
 

136.  24/01442/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single-storey rear extension, proposed canopy to front door, 2 new dormer 

windows to replace existing Velux windows and external alterations to rear elevation 

(amended plans and description) 

Little Window Cottage 2 Blacksmiths Court Kingham 

Mr & Mrs V Diffley-Pierce 

 

 

137.  24/01444/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement of asbestos kitchen roof with natural slate and the insertion of two conservation 

roof lights. 

154 The Hill Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr R And S Alexander And Cawte 

 

 

138.  24/01445/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to replace asbestos kitchen roof with natural slate and the 

insertion of two conservation roof lights. 

154 The Hill Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr R And S Alexander And Cawte 

 

 

139.  24/01449/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (single storey rear extension and insertion of 4no roof lights to 

existing rear roof). 

1 Green Lane Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Scott Bailey And Jordan Beahan 

 

 

140.  24/01451/HHD Burford REF 

  

Erection of single-storey side/rear extension, and dormer extension including internal 

alterations to facilitate works. 

Barley Lane  Shilton Road Burford 

Mr McKechnie 

 

 

141.  24/01453/CLP Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (construction of single storey rear extension). 

8 Elm Crescent Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs S Robertson 

 

 

Page 79



DELGAT 
 

142.  24/01460/CLP Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (works to include a replacement roof to existing conservatory). 

Shanlee Main Street Over Norton 

Mr Glen Pashley 

 

 

143.  24/01461/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear extension. 

2 Kents Bank Long Hanborough Witney 

Mrs G Watabiki 

 

 

144.  24/01466/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 5 (details of external lighting) and 6 (comprehensive landscape 

scheme) of Planning Permission 24/01269/S73 

Police Station  Banbury Road Chipping Norton 

Mark Edwards 

 

 

145.  24/01477/PN56 Chipping Norton P3APP 

  

Conversion of two existing barns to dwellings (class C3) and operations reasonably necessary 

for the conversion 

Priory Barn Oxford Road Southcombe 

Mr Justin Witton 

 

 

146.  24/01479/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 4 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities), 5 

(lighting design strategy) and 6 (landscape scheme) of Planning Permission 23/01595/FUL 

Little Manor Church Hill Tackley 

Louise Steele 

 

 

147.  24/01480/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 4 (bat roosting and nesting opportunities), 5 (lighting design strategy 

for biodiversity) and 6 (landscape scheme) of Planning Permission 23/01597/FUL 

Little Manor Church Hill Tackley 

. 

 

 

Page 80



DELGAT 
 

148.  24/01484/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 4 (bird and bat boxes) and 5 (details of external lighting) of Planning 

Permission 23/01510/S73 

Little Manor Church Hill Tackley 

. 

 

 

149.  24/01485/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Proposed loft conversion with small pitched roof dormers and gable end windows (amended 

plans and description) 

12 Wheeler Avenue Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mrs E Bourke 

 

 

150.  24/01502/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (details of the access) of Planning Permission 22/01768/FUL 

Street Record Rye Grass Woodstock 

Robin Needham 

 

 

151.  24/01511/CLP Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (Erection of a single storey extension and conversion of garage to 

living accommodation) 

Harlyn 145 Wroslyn Road Freeland 

Mr & Mrs Holt 

 

 

152.  24/01513/S73 Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Variation of conditions 2 and 3 from Planning Permission 21/02633/HHD to allow for 

amendments to the design of the extensions and materials 

Lancut House Lyneham Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr Simon Marshall 

 

 

153.  24/01529/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Partial demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single-storey rear extension. 

26 Wychwood Drive Milton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mrs Kay Shortland 

 

 

Page 81



DELGAT 
 

154.  24/01542/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement of two windows with bi-folding doors. 

7 Shilson Lane Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr Jeremy Baldock 

 

 

155.  24/01543/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Extension of existing ancillary accommodation with internal and external alterations. 

Forge Cottage Church Enstone Chipping Norton 

Ms Erica Fiorucci 

 

 

156.  24/01545/PDET28 Burford P2NRQ 

  

Construction of an agricultural storage building. 

Manor Farm  Westhall Hill Fulbrook 

Mr T Pearce 

 

 

157.  24/01547/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a ground floor infill extension 

The Old Ropery Cottage  142B High Street Burford 

Mr Robert Judge 

 

 

158.  24/01548/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the erection of a ground floor infill extension 

The Old Ropery Cottage  142B High Street Burford 

Mr Robert Judge 

 

 

159.  24/01569/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to replace existing staircase. 

Combe House Park Road Combe 

Mr And Mrs Vine 

 

 

Page 82



DELGAT 
 

160.  24/01571/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of garage to create additional living accommodation 

Manor Barn Main Road Fawler 

Mr Robin Sheppard 

 

 

161.  24/01572/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external works to convert the garage to additional living accommodation 

Manor Barn Main Road Fawler 

Mr Robin Sheppard 

 

 

162.  24/01573/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single-storey rear extension and alterations including insertion of new window, 

rooflight and flue. 

8 St Johns Road Tackley Kidlington 

Mr & Mrs Phillipson 

 

 

163.  24/01523/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Erection of a front single storey extension and alterations to garage to form a pitched roof 

2 Busby Close Stonesfield Witney 

Mr Jonathan Hands 

 

 

164.  24/01576/CND Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (details of fences/boundary treatments) of Planning Permission 

24/00865/HHD 

Bracken Hill 25 Tanners Lane Burford 

Mr Paul Randall 

 

 

165.  24/01581/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 6 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities) of 

Planning Permission 23/03314/FUL 

Land (E) 403777 (N) 227446 Elmsfield Industrial Estate Chipping Norton 

Mr M. Stobart 

 

 

Page 83



DELGAT 
 

166.  24/01582/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Remedial works to existing roof covering, rainwater goods, leadwork, dormer windows 

including the erection of scaffolding. 

Lee Place Hixet Wood Charlbury 

C/O Agent 

 

 

167.  24/01593/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 6 (details of bat roosting and nesting opportunities), 7 (details of 

lighting) and 8 (landscape scheme) of Planning Permission 21/01970/FUL (retrospective) 

Little Manor Church Hill Tackley 

C/O Agent 

 

 

168.  24/01662/NMA Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed roof lights (non-material amendment to allow additional roof light in South 

elevation). 

Foxley House High Street Great Rollright 

Mr David Buggee 

 

 

169.  24/01668/NMA Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Demolition of existing retirement dwellings. Construction of 37 no. replacement age 

restricted apartment units contained in 4 no. apartment blocks together with associated 

works, amenity spaces and parking (non-material amendment to allow for alterations to the 

sun room, additions of heat pumps, moving of Plot 27 Front Entrance Door, Omission of 

Cladding on Block A West Elevation, Change to Communal and Front Entrance Door 

Designs, and additional Footpath to Block C) 

Street Record Rye Grass Woodstock 

Mr Cottsway Housing Association 

 

 

170.  24/01686/PDET28 Burford P2NRQ 

  

Erection of a steel framed agricultural building 

Land Parcel At E423806 N213377 Taynton Oxfordshire 

Nicholas Mills 

 

 

Page 84



DELGAT 
 

171.  24/01649/NMA Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Formation of overflow car park, including associated works to involve new connections to 

existing car park/routes, alterations landscaping planting (non-material amendment to allow 

minor changes to the car park extension scheme approved under 23/03417/FUL). 

Land And Buildings For Soho House Property Great Tew Oxfordshire 

Soho House UK Limited 

 

 

172.  24/01728/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 6 (details and method of masonry) and 7 (details of original staircase) 

of Listed Building Consent 24/00347/LBC 

Minster Cottage Church Street Charlbury 

Mr and Mrs Fred Hadfield 

 

 

173.  24/01773/HHD Charlbury and Finstock WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion and extension of garage to form garden room. 

62 The Slade Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr Ian Pout 

 

 

174.  24/01776/PDET28 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

P2NRQ 

  

Extension to the southern elevation of an existing agricultural barn. 

Land At Firs Farm The Green 

Mr Ian Pearman 

 

 

175.  24/01840/NMA Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey front and rear extensions (non-material amendment to 

23/03110/HHD to change flat roof to front bay window to a tiled lean-to pitched roof). 

8 Elm Crescent Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs S Robertson 

 

 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Appeal Decisions 

 

APP/D3125/Y/24/3337855 & APP/D3125/W/24/3337853 

Bell Hotel, Church Street, Charlbury, OX7 3PP 

The development proposed is erection of a stone wall enclosure to the forecourt and metal gates, a 

replacement signage pole with replica bell (retrospective), new flag pole fixed to the rear elevation 

(amended) lighting and commemorative stone. 

Both appeals are dismissed.  

 

APP/D3125/W/24/3336443 

Drovers Barn, Church End, Swerford, Oxfordshire OX7 4BA 

The development proposed is the conversion of builder’s yard storage building to dwellinghouse and 

associated alterations and operations.  

The appeal is dismissed and the application for an award of costs is refused. 

 

APP/D3125/W/23/3330358 

15 Meadow Lane, Shipton-Under-Wychwood OX7 6BL  

The development proposed is the installation of 2x Upstanding EV chargers to charge electric cars at 

15 Meadow Lane.  

The appeal is dismissed. 

 

APP/D3125/W/23/3329201 

Land North East of Lantern House, 15 Shilton Road, Burford, Oxfordshire OX14 4PQ 

The development proposed is for the provision of two self-build/custom housebuilding plots with 

new access from the A40/Oxford Road and provision for pedestrian crossing 

The appeal is dismissed. 

 

APP/D3125/W/23/3326709 & APP/D3125/W/23/3326710  

Land at Burleigh Wood, Cassington Road, Bladon, Oxfordshire OX20 1RX 

The development proposed is described as “Retrospective application for continued use of land for 

outdoor adventure camping for 22 weeks per calendar year between the 1st May to 2nd October, 

including camp areas, kitchen areas, storage areas, shower and toilet areas, drop off and turning 

areas”.  

Both appeals are dismissed.  

 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 7

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3337855&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3337853&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3336443&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3330358&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3329201&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?Caseid=3326709&CoID=0


Appeal Decisions 

 

 

 

 APP/D3125/D/24/3338690 

22 Flemings Road, Woodstock, Oxfordshire, OX20 1ND 

The development is described as the retention of an existing boundary fence. 

The appeal is dismissed.  

 

APP/D3125/D/23/3330240 

1 Sunnyview, Milton Under Wychwood, Oxfordshire OX7 6JJ 

The development proposed is a proposed single-storey extension to the existing house and detached 

Utility outbuilding.  

The appeal is allowed.  

 

APP/D3125/Y/23/3327670 

Hollybank, Wootton, Woodstock, Oxfordshire OX20 1AE 

The works proposed are single storey kitchen extension.  

The appeal is dismissed.  

Page 88

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3338690&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3330240&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3327670&CoID=0


 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Name and date of 

Committee 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE: MONDAY 19 AUGUST 

2024 

Subject PROGRESS ON PRIORITY ENFORCEMENT CASES 

Wards affected As specified in Annex A 

Accountable officer Abby Fettes, Development Manager  

Email: abby.fettes@publicagroup.uk  

Author Kelly Murray, Principal Planner (Enforcement and Appeals)  

Tel: 01993 861674 Email: kelly.murray@westoxon.gov.uk  

Summary/Purpose To provide an update on progress in respect of priority enforcement 

investigations. 

Annex Annex A – Schedule of cases (Sections A to C) 

Recommendation That the progress and nature of the outstanding enforcement investigations 

detailed in Sections A – C of Annex A be noted.  

Corporate priorities  1.1. N/A 

Key Decision 1.2. N/A 

Exempt 1.3. No 

  

Page 89

Agenda Item 8

mailto:abby.fettes@publicagroup.uk
mailto:kelly.murray@westoxon.gov.uk


1. BACKGROUND AND MAIN POINTS 

1.1. Section A of Annex A contains cases where the requirements of a formal notice 

have not been met within the compliance period (page 3). 

1.2. Section B contains cases where formal action has been taken but the compliance 

period has yet to expire (3). 

1.3. Section C contains cases which are high priority but where the expediency of 

enforcement action has yet to be considered (5). 

1.4. The Sub-Committee should be aware that the cases included in this update 

constitute only a small number of the overall enforcement caseload across the 

District, which at the time of writing consists of 250 live cases. The high priority 

cases for both Uplands and Lowlands constitute approximately 13% of the total 

caseload. 

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1. There are no financial implications resulting from this report.   

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1. Not applicable, as the report is for information.  

4. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

4.1. None

Page 90



Annex A 

SECTION A – PROGRESS ON CASES WHERE THE REQUIREMENTS OF A FORMAL  

NOTICE HAVE NOT BEEN MET WITHIN THE COMPLIANCE PERIOD 

The cases listed in the following section are those where a notice has been served and the requirements have not been met within the compliance 

period or there has been an unauthorised display of advertisements.  This means that an offence is likely to have been committed and that the Council 

need to consider the next steps to secure compliance.  In some cases this will entail the initiation of legal proceedings to bring about a prosecution.  

Site Address and 

Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

 

 

 

SECTION B – PROGRESS ON ENFORCEMENT INVESTIGATIONS WHERE FORMAL ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN. 

The cases listed in Section B are ones where a notice has been served but the compliance date has not yet passed or where an appeal has been made. 

Site Address and 
Case No. 

Unauthorised 
Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

    

Land at Cling 

Clang Lane 

Enstone 

Digging of 

trenches. 

Various adjacent parcels of land 

have recently been advertised for 

sale online.  Some of these appear 

to have been sold.  One has been 

marked out with pegs and there 

are signs of development possibly 

to install a pond.  The County 

archaeology service have 

identified possible historic 

remains in this area. 

Following reports by the Parish Council, Officers posted a temporary stop 

notice on site.  No further works have been carried out and we have now 

identified the owner and are carrying out further investigations. 

Netherby Farm, 

Swerford 

Unauthorised 

residential 

occupation of 

caravan 

Members resolved to refuse 

planning permission for 

temporary residential use.   

The appeal was dismissed in September and the inspector extended the 

deadline for cessation of residential use to summer 2024.  The occupants’ 

agent has been in regular contact and a new application for temporary 

residential use in connection with agricultural use was submitted earlier 

this year.  This includes new evidence of need in connection with the 

P
age 91



The Council served an 

Enforcement Notice in May 2022 

which was appealed. 

developing farming business and is being considered.  Officers have agreed 

with the occupants to suspend enforcement action in the meantime.  

Brothertons 

Brasserie  

1 High Street, 

Woodstock 

Unauthorised 

awning 

An enforcement notice was 

served in 2022 following refusal 

of a retrospective application.  

This was appealed. 

The appeal was dismissed.  The awnings have now been removed.  Case 

closed. 

The Wychwood 

Inn, Shipton-U-

Wychwood 

Unauthorised 

lean-to and 

outbuildings.  

Pub part grade 2 

listed and in 

conservation 

area. 

A retrospective application was 

submitted for part of the 

unauthorised development.  This 

was approved but has not been 

implemented. 

An enforcement notice was served on 14 June requiring implementation of 

the recent permission and removal of the unauthorised building.  The time 

for appealing expired on 17 July. 

  P
age 92



SECTION C – PROGRESS ON OTHER ENFORCEMENT INVESTIGATIONS IDENTIFIED AS BEING HIGH PRIORITY 

Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

The Beeches, 

Old London 

Road, Chipping 

Norton 

Car park 

extension.  

Additional 

caravans located 

on the periphery 

of the site. 

Extension of the 

site to the south 

of the site 

access. 

There are ongoing non-planning 

issues on the site that are being 

investigated by other services 

within the Council and other 

agencies. 

 

Officers continue to attempt to negotiate with the owner of a caravan that 

has been placed on the boundary and which is highly visible from the road.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20 Taynton Listed building 

at risk 

Dwelling and barn both Grade II 

listed. 

The Council’s Conservation 

Officer was satisfied with the re-

thatching of the roof which was 

carried out on a “like-for-like” 

basis.   

The house remains vacant and its condition continues to be monitored.   

121 High Street 

Burford 

Listed building 

in poor state of 

repair 

 Following a meeting with Officers in late 2023, the owner stated an 

intention to carry out repair works this year and we understand he has 

recently confirmed his builder will be starting shortly.  Officers are 

monitoring the situation.   

Track at Tracey 

Lane Great Tew 

Unauthorised 

track created 

Amended retrospective 

application seeking to address 

archaeological and landscape 

issues was approved under 

reference 18/02236/FUL and then 

varied by a subsequent 

permission 21/03357/S73. 

The top dressing required by the 2021 permission has been applied as 

required and a meeting on site is due to be arranged to discuss other aspects 

of the permission.   

  

P
age 93



Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

14 Park Street 

Woodstock 

Internal and 

external 

operations being 

carried out 

without consent.  

Listed building being converted 

to residential user. Former 

Barclays bank. 

Officers are monitoring replacement of the previous windows that were 

removed and discarded without consent having been granted.  An 

application for consent for single-glazed windows was approved and 

confirmation of implementation is awaited. 

Barwood  

Homes, Tackley 

Elevated 

footpath 

Officers negotiated an amended 

landscape scheme in order to 

ameliorate the impact of the 

footpath 

Officers have inspected the site and discussed compliance with the company 

responsible for maintaining the landscaping scheme.  The company agreed 

to replace the dead and dying trees and compliance continues to be 

monitored. 

 

West End Farm, 

Chipping 

Norton 

 

 

 

 

Unauthorised 

hard standing 

The hardstanding was originally 

built without permission as the 

base for a new barn.  It is 

considered to cause landscape 

harm and to impact adversely on 

the setting of Bliss Mill.    

An enforcement notice was served and was not appealed.   Works have been 

carried out but a further site visit is required to ensure full compliance has 

been achieved. 

Diddly Squat 

Farm, Chipping 

Norton Road, 

Chadlington 

 

 

Unlawful 

material change 

of use causing 

harm to the 

AONB 

An Enforcement notice was 

served in August 2022 which was 

part upheld and part dismissed 

following a hearing in March this 

year. 

A condition of the temporary permission granted by the inspector on appeal 

required the submission of a site development scheme for approval.  This 

has been approved and requires hard landscaping to be carried out by 

August 2024 and planting by early 2025.  There remain concerns about 

traffic management however this is outside of WODC’s control.   

Land adj 

Burleigh Lodge 

Cassington 

Road Bladon 

Laying of 

hardstanding for 

use as car park.  

Use of 

woodland for 

commercial 

forest school. 

Part of the affected land is 

designated as “ancient 

woodland”. 

 

Retrospective applications 

22/03502/FUL and 

22/03501/FUL were refused and 

are currently the subject of appeal 

but there is no start date for the 

appeals at present. 

The bushcraft activity in the woods has been suspended for the season 

awaiting the outcome of the appeals. 

 

The appeals have been dismissed by PINS.  Officers will shortly be 

contacting the operators to discuss next steps to clear the site and reinstate 

the land. 

 

 

P
age 94



Site Address 

and Case No. 

Unauthorised 

Development 

Notes Update/Action to be taken 

Land at Field 

Assarts  

Material change 

of use of land 

adjacent to a 

former barn 

under 

conversion for 

Class E use. 

Temporary consent was granted  

to allow conditioned business use 

for the duration of conversion 

works to the barn. 

The operations have now moved into the converted barn and Officers are 

awaiting an application in respect of the outside areas of the site, which is 

likely to include landscaping plans.  It is proposed to remove this from the 

priority list. 

The Bull Inn 

Charlbury 

Erection of new 

flue on the 

building, canopy 

over seating 

area, changes to 

car parking and 

other works. 

This is a listed building that has 

in the recent past been subject to 

enforcement action. 

 

The Council has suspended the consideration of formal action pending 

consideration of a pre-application that has now been submitted and is 

under consideration.  

The Bell Inn 

Charlbury 

Unauthorised 

works to grade 2 

listed building 

A retrospective application was 

submitted and refused. 
The appeal against refusal has been dismissed.  Officers will shortly be 

contacting the owners to agree a timescale for removal of the unauthorised 

wall. 

 

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Amendments to Section 106 agreement of application ref. 22/02429/FUL- Play Area, Walterbush Road, Chipping Norton.
	6 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers
	7 Appeal Decisions
	8 Progress on Enforcement Cases

